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Part I

Item 1

Business

COLONY BANKCORP, INC.

General

Colony Bankcorp, Inc. (the “Company” or “Colony”) is a Georgia business corporation which was incorporated on
November 8, 1982. The Company was organized for the purpose of operating as a bank holding company under the
Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended, and the bank holding company laws of Georgia (Georgia Laws
1976, p. 168, et. seq.). On July 22, 1983, the Company, after obtaining the requisite regulatory approvals, acquired
100 percent of the issued and outstanding common stock of Colony Bank (formerly Colony Bank of Fitzgerald and
The Bank of Fitzgerald), Fitzgerald, Georgia (the “Bank” or “Colony Bank”), through the merger of the Bank with a
subsidiary of the Company which was created for the purpose of organizing the Bank into a one-bank holding
company. Since that time, Colony Bank has operated as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Our business is
conducted primarily through our wholly-owned bank subsidiary, which provides a broad range of banking services to
its retail and commercial customers. The company headquarters is located at 115 South Grant Street, Fitzgerald,
Georgia 31750, its telephone number is 229-426-6000 and its Internet address is http://www.colonybank.com. We
operate twenty-seven domestic banking offices and one corporate operations office and, at December 31, 2016, we
had approximately $1.21 billion in total assets, $754.28 million in total loans, $1.04 billion in total deposits and
$93.39 million in stockholder’s equity. Deposits are insured, up to applicable limits, by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation.

The Parent Company

Because the Company is a bank holding company, its principal operations are conducted through the Bank. It has 100
percent ownership of its subsidiary and maintains systems of financial, operational and administrative controls that
permit centralized evaluation of the operations of the subsidiary bank in selected functional areas including
operations, accounting, marketing, investment management, purchasing, human resources, computer services,
auditing, compliance and credit review. As a bank holding company, we perform certain stockholder and investor
relations functions.
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Colony Bank - Banking Services

Our principal subsidiary is the Bank. The Bank, headquartered in Fitzgerald, Georgia, offers traditional banking
products and services to commercial and consumer customers in our markets. Our product line includes, among other
things, loans to small and medium-sized businesses, residential and commercial construction and land development
loans, commercial real estate loans, commercial loans, agri-business and production loans, residential mortgage loans,
home equity loans, consumer loans and a variety of demand, savings and time deposit products. We also offer internet
banking services, electronic bill payment services, safe deposit box rentals, telephone banking, credit and debit card
services, remote depository products and access to a network of ATMs to our customers. The Bank conducts a general
full service commercial, consumer and mortgage banking business through twenty-seven offices located in central,
south and coastal Georgia cities of Fitzgerald, Warner Robins, Centerville, Ashburn, Leesburg, Cordele, Albany,
Thomaston, Columbus, Sylvester, Tifton, Moultrie, Douglas, Broxton, Savannah, Eastman, Soperton, Rochelle,
Quitman, Valdosta and Statesboro, Georgia.

For additional discussion of our loan portfolio and deposit accounts, see “Management’s Discussion of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations - Loans and Deposits.”

- 3 -
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1 (Continued)

Subordinated Debentures (Trust Preferred Securities)

During the second quarter of 2004, the Company formed Colony Bankcorp Statutory Trust III for the sole purpose of
issuing $4,500,000 in Trust Preferred Securities through a pool sponsored by FTN Financial Capital Market. The
securities have a maturity of thirty years and are redeemable after five years with certain exceptions.

During the second quarter of 2006, the Company formed Colony Bankcorp Capital Trust I for the sole purpose of
issuing $5,000,000 in Trust Preferred Securities through a pool sponsored by SunTrust Bank Capital Markets. The
securities have a maturity of thirty years and are redeemable after five years with certain exceptions.

During the first quarter of 2007, the Company formed Colony Bankcorp Capital Trust II for the sole purpose of
issuing $9,000,000 in Trust Preferred Securities through a pool sponsored by Trapeza Capital Management, LLC. The
securities have a maturity of thirty years and are redeemable after five years with certain exceptions. Proceeds from
this issuance were used to pay off trust preferred securities issued on March 26, 2002 through Colony Bankcorp
Statutory Trust I.

During the third quarter of 2007, the Company formed Colony Bankcorp Capital Trust III for the sole purpose of
issuing $5,000,000 in Trust Preferred Securities through a pool sponsored by Trapeza Capital Management, LLC. The
securities have a maturity of thirty years and are redeemable after five years with certain exceptions. Proceeds from
this issuance were used to pay off trust preferred securities issued on December 19, 2002 through Colony Bankcorp
Statutory Trust II.

Markets and Competition

The banking industry in general is highly competitive. Our market areas of central, south and coastal Georgia have
experienced good economic and population growth the past several years. In contrast to our rural markets, in which
we typically rank in the top three in terms of market share, in our larger markets, we face competitive pressures in
attracting deposits and making loans from larger regional banks and smaller community banks, thrift institutions,
credit unions, consumer finance companies, mortgage bankers, brokerage firms and insurance companies. The
principal factors in competing for deposits and loans include interest rates, fee structures, range of products and
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services offered and convenience of office and ATM locations. The banking industry is also experiencing increased
competition for deposits from less traditional sources such as money market and mutual funds. In addition, intense
market demands, economic concerns, volatile interest rates and customer awareness of product and services have
forced banks to be more competitive - often resulting in margin compression and a decrease in operating efficiency.

Correspondents

Colony Bank has correspondent relationships with the following banks: Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta; SunTrust
Bank in Atlanta, Georgia; FTN Financial in Memphis, Tennessee, CenterState Bank in Lake Wales, Florida and the
Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta. These correspondent relationships facilitate the transactions of business by
means of loans, collections, investment services, lines of credit and exchange services, particularly in markets in
which Colony Bank does not have a physical presence. As compensation for these services, the Bank maintains
balances with its correspondents in primarily interest-bearing accounts and pays some service charges.

- 4 -
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1 (Continued)

Employees

On December 31, 2016, the Company had a total of 333 employees, 318 of which are full-time employees. We
consider our relationship with our employees to be satisfactory.

The Company has a profit-sharing plan covering all employees, subject to certain minimum age and service
requirements. In addition, the Company maintains a comprehensive employee benefit program providing, among
other benefits, hospitalization, major medical, life insurance and disability insurance. Management considers these
benefits to be competitive with those offered by other financial institutions in our market area. Colony’s employees are
not represented by any collective bargaining group.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

BANK HOLDING COMPANY REGULATION

General

As a bank holding company under federal and state law, we are subject to regulation, supervision and examination by
the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (“Federal Reserve”). Our bank subsidiary, Colony Bank, is
chartered in the State of Georgia and is subject to regulation, supervision and examination by the Georgia Department
of Banking and Finance (the “Georgia Department”) and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”). In addition,
as discussed in more detail below, Colony Bank is subject to regulation by, and potentially supervision and
examination by the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (“CFPB”). Supervision, regulation, and examination of the
company and the Bank by the bank regulatory agencies are intended primarily for the protection of consumers, bank
depositors and the Deposit Insurance Fund (“DIF”) of the FDIC, rather than holders of our capital stock.

This discussion is qualified in its entirety by reference to the particular statutory and regulatory provisions described
below and is not intended to be an exhaustive description of the statutes or regulations applicable to the Company and
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the Bank’s business. Any change in laws, regulations, or supervisory actions, whether by the FDIC, the Federal
Reserve, the Georgia Department, the CFPB, Congress or the Georgia legislature, could have a material adverse
impact on the Company and the Bank.

We are also required to comply with various corporate governance and financial reporting requirements under the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as well as rules and regulations adopted by the SEC, the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board, and Nasdaq. We have evaluated our controls, including compliance with the SEC rules on internal
controls, and have and expect to continue to spend significant amounts of time and money on compliance with these
rules. Our failure to comply with these internal control rules may materially adversely affect our reputation, ability to
obtain the necessary certifications to financial statements, and the values of our securities. The assessments of our
financial reporting controls as of December 31, 2016 are included in this report under “Section 9A. Controls and
Procedures.”

From time to time, various legislative and regulatory initiatives are introduced in Congress and state legislatures, as
well as by regulatory agencies. Such initiatives may include proposals to expand or contract the powers of bank
holding companies and depository institutions or proposals to substantially change the financial institution regulatory
system. Such legislation could change banking statutes and the operating environment of the Company in substantial
and unpredictable ways. If enacted, such legislation could increase or decrease the cost of doing business, limit or
expand permissible activities or affect the competitive balance among banks, savings associations, credit unions, and
other financial institutions. The Company cannot predict whether any such legislation will be enacted, and, if enacted,
the effect that it, or any implementing regulations, would have on the financial condition or results of operations of the
Company. A change in statutes, regulations or regulatory policies applicable to the Company or any of its subsidiaries
could have a material effect on the business of the Company.

- 5 -
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1 (Continued)

Recent Regulatory Developments-- The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010

On July 21, 2010, President Obama signed into law the Dodd-Frank Act. The Dodd-Frank Act has and will continue
to have a broad impact on the financial services industry, imposing significant regulatory and compliance changes, the
imposition of increased capital, leverage and liquidity requirements, and numerous other provisions designed to
improve supervision and oversight of, and strengthen safety and soundness within, the financial services sector.
Provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act that have affected or are likely to affect our operations or the operations of Colony
Bank include:

● Creation of the CFPB with centralized authority, including examination and enforcement authority, for
consumer protection in the banking industry.

●
New prohibitions and restrictions on the ability of a banking entity to engage in proprietary trading for its own
account and have certain interests in, or relationships with, certain unregistered hedge funds, private equity funds and
commodity pools.

●Application of new regulatory capital requirements, including changes to leverage and risk-based capital standardsand changes to the components of permissible tiered capital.

●Requirement that holding companies and their subsidiary banks be well capitalized and well managed in order toengage in activities permitted for financial holding companies.

●Changes to the assessment base for deposit insurance premiums.

●Permanently raising the FDIC’s standard maximum insurance amount to $250,000.

●Repealed the prohibition on the payment of interest on demand deposits.

●
Restrictions on compensation, including a prohibition on incentive-based compensation arrangements that encourage
inappropriate risk taking by covered financial institutions that are deemed to be excessive, or that may lead to
material losses.
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●Requirement that sponsors of asset-backed securities retain a percentage of the credit risk underlying the securities.

●Requirement that banking regulators remove references to and requirements of reliance upon credit ratings from theirregulations and replace them with appropriate alternatives for evaluating creditworthiness.

- 6 -
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1 (Continued)

While most of the requirements called for in the Dodd-Frank Act have been implemented, others will continue to be
implemented over time. Given the extent of the changes brought about by the Dodd-Frank Act and the significant
discretion afforded to federal regulators to implement those changes, we cannot fully predict the extent of the impact
such requirements will have on our operations. The changes resulting from the Dodd-Frank Act may impact the
profitability of our business activities, require changes to certain of our business practices, impose upon us more
stringent capital, liquidity and leverage requirements or otherwise adversely affect our business. These changes may
also require us to invest significant management attention and resources to evaluate and make any changes necessary
to comply with new statutory and regulatory requirements. Failure to comply with the new requirements may
negatively impact our results of operations and financial condition. While we cannot predict what effect any presently
contemplated or future changes in the laws or regulations or their interpretations would have on us, these changes
could be materially adverse to our investors.

The following items and information provided in subsequent sections provide a further description of certain relevant
provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act and their potential impact on our operations and activities, both currently and
prospectively.

Creation of New Governmental Authorities.  The Dodd-Frank Act created various new governmental authorities such
as the CFPB, an independent regulatory authority housed within the Federal Reserve. The CFPB has broad authority
to regulate the offering and provision of consumer financial products. The CFPB’s authority to supervise and examine
depository institutions with $10 billion or less in assets, such as us, for compliance with federal consumer laws
remains largely with those institutions’ primary regulators. However, the CFPB may participate in examinations of
these smaller institutions on a “sampling basis” and may refer potential enforcement actions against such institutions to
their primary regulators. The CFPB also may participate in examinations of Colony Bank, which currently has assets
of less than $10 billion, and could supervise and examine other direct or indirect subsidiaries that offer consumer
financial products or services. In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act permits states to adopt consumer protection laws and
regulations that are stricter than those regulations promulgated by the CFPB, and state attorneys general are permitted
to enforce consumer protection rules adopted by the CFPB against certain institutions.

Corporate Governance.  The Dodd-Frank Act addresses many investor protection, corporate governance, and
executive compensation matters that will affect most U.S. publicly traded companies. The Dodd-Frank Act (1) grants
shareholders of U.S. publicly traded companies an advisory vote on executive compensation; (2) enhances
independence requirements for Compensation Committee members; and (3) requires companies listed on national
securities exchanges to adopt incentive-based compensation clawback policies for executive officers.
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Incentive Compensation. The Dodd-Frank Act requires the banking agencies and the SEC to establish joint rules or
guidelines for financial institutions with more than $1 billion in assets, such as us and Colony Bank, which prohibit
incentive compensation arrangements that the agencies determine encourage inappropriate risks by the institution. The
banking agencies issued proposed rules in 2011 and previously issued guidance on sound incentive compensation
policies. In 2016, the Federal Reserve and the FDIC have also proposed rules that would, depending upon the assets of
the institution, directly regulate incentive compensation arrangements and would require enhanced oversight and
recordkeeping. As of December 31, 2016, these rules have not been implemented.

- 7 -
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1 (Continued)

Shareholder Say-On-Pay Votes. The Dodd-Frank Act requires public companies to take shareholders' votes on
proposals addressing compensation (known as say-on-pay), the frequency of a say-on-pay vote, and the golden
parachutes available to executives in connection with change-in-control transactions. Public companies must give
shareholders the opportunity to vote on the compensation at least every three years and the opportunity to vote on
frequency at least every six years, indicating whether the say-on-pay vote should be held annually, biennially, or
triennially. The first say-on-pay vote occurred at our 2011 annual shareholders meeting. The say-on-pay, the
say-on-parachute and the say-on-frequency votes are explicitly nonbinding and cannot override a decision of our
board of directors.

Volcker Rule. In December 2013, the Federal Reserve and other regulators jointly issued final rules implementing
requirements of a new Section 13 to the Bank Holding Company Act, commonly referred to as the “Volcker Rule.” The
Volcker Rule generally prohibits us and our subsidiaries from (i) engaging in proprietary trading for our own account,
and (ii) acquiring or retaining an ownership interest in or sponsoring a “covered fund,” all subject to certain exceptions.
The Volcker Rule also specifies certain limited activities in which we and our subsidiaries may continue to engage.
The regulators provided for a Volcker Rule conformance date of July 21, 2015. The Federal Reserve extended the
conformance deadline to July 21, 2016 for certain legacy “covered funds” activities and investments in place before
December 31, 2013, and the Federal Reserve expressed its intention to grant the last available statutory extension for
such covered funds activities until July 21, 2017. Further, the Federal Reserve Board permits limited exemptions,
upon application, for divestiture of certain “illiquid” covered funds, for an additional period of up to 5 years beyond that
date.

Bank Holding Company Regulation

As a bank holding company, we are subject to supervision and regulation by the Federal Reserve under the BHCA.
Bank holding companies generally are limited to the business of banking, managing or controlling banks, and other
activities that the Federal Reserve determines to be so closely related to banking, or managing or controlling banks as
to be a proper incident thereto. We are required to file with the Federal Reserve periodic reports and such other
information as the Federal Reserve may request. Ongoing supervision is provided through regular examinations by the
Federal Reserve and other means that allow the regulators to gauge management’s ability to identify, assess and
control risk in all areas of operations in a safe and sound manner and to ensure compliance with laws and regulations.
The Federal Reserve may also examine our non-bank subsidiaries.

Expansion and Activity Limitations. The BHCA permits acquisitions of banks by bank holding companies, such that
we and any other bank holding company, whether located in Georgia or elsewhere, may acquire a bank located in any
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other state, subject to certain deposit-percentage, age of bank charter requirements, and other restrictions. Federal law
also permits national and state-chartered banks to branch interstate through acquisitions of banks in other states,
subject to certain requirements.

- 8 -

Edgar Filing: COLONY BANKCORP INC - Form 10-K

16



Part I (Continued)

Item 1 (Continued)

Subject to prior notice or Federal Reserve approval, under the BHCA, a bank holding company is generally permitted
to engage in, or acquire direct or indirect control of more than 5 percent of the voting shares of, any company engaged
in the following activities:

●Banking or managing or controlling banks;

●Furnishing services to or performing services for our subsidiaries; and

●Any activity that the Federal Reserve determines to be so closely related to banking as to be a proper incident to thebusiness of banking, including:

•Factoring accounts receivable;

•Making, acquiring, brokering or servicing loans and usual related activities;

•Leasing personal or real property;

•Operating a non-bank depository institution, such as a savings association;

•Performing trust company functions;

•Providing financial and investment advisory activities;

•Conducting discount securities brokerage activities;

•Underwriting and dealing in government obligations and money market instruments;

•Providing specified management consulting and counseling activities;
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•Performing selected data processing services and support services;

•Acting as agent or broker in selling credit life insurance and other types of insurance in connection with credittransactions;

•Performing selected insurance underwriting activities;

•Providing certain community development activities (such as making investments in projects designed primarily topromote community welfare); and

•Issuing and selling money orders and similar consumer-type payment instruments.

- 9 -

Edgar Filing: COLONY BANKCORP INC - Form 10-K

18



Part I (Continued)

Item 1 (Continued)

Bank holding companies that elect and retain “financial holding company” status pursuant to the Gramm-Leach-Bliley
Act of 1999 (“GLBA”) may engage in broader securities, insurance, merchant banking and other activities that are
determined to be “financial in nature” or are incidental or complementary to activities that are financial in nature without
prior Federal Reserve approval. Pursuant to the GLBA and the Dodd-Frank Act, in order to elect and retain financial
holding company status, a bank holding company and all depository institution subsidiaries of that bank holding
company must be well capitalized and well managed, and, except in limited circumstances, depository subsidiaries
must be in satisfactory compliance with the Community Reinvestment Act (“CRA”), which requires banks to help meet
the credit needs of the communities in which they operate. Failure to sustain compliance with these requirements or
correct any non-compliance within a fixed time period could lead to the required divestiture of subsidiary banks or the
termination of all activities that do not conform to those permissible for a bank holding company. The Company has
not elected financial holding company status and neither Company nor the Bank has engaged in any activities
determined by the Federal Reserve to be financial in nature or incidental or complementary to activities that are
financial in nature.

Other Restrictions on the Company’s Activities

As contained in both federal and state banking laws and regulations, a wide range of requirements and restrictions
apply to bank holding companies and their subsidiaries which:

●Require periodic reports and such additional information as the Federal Reserve may require bank holding companiesto meet or exceed minimum capital requirements;

●In certain circumstances, limit dividends payable to shareholders and restrict the ability of bank holding companies toobtain dividends or other distributions from their subsidiary banks;

●
Require a bank holding company to terminate an activity or terminate control of or liquidate or divest certain
subsidiaries, affiliates or investments if the Federal Reserve believes the activity or the control of the subsidiary or
affiliate constitutes a significant risk to the financial safety, soundness or stability of any bank subsidiary;

●
Require the prior approval for changes in senior executive officer or directors and prohibit golden parachute
payments, including change in control agreements, or new employment agreements with such payment terms, which
are contingent upon termination when a bank holding company is deemed to be in troubled condition;
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●
Regulate provisions of certain bank holding company debt, including the authority to impose interest ceilings and
reserve requirements on such debt and require prior approval to purchase or redeem securities in certain situations;
and

●Require prior approval of acquisitions and mergers with other banks or bank holding companies and consider certaincompetitive, management, financial, and compliance concerns.

- 10 -
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1 (Continued)

Source of Strength

Federal Reserve policy requires a bank holding company to act as a source of financial and managerial strength and to
support its bank subsidiary in situations where additional investments in a troubled bank may not otherwise be
warranted. The holding company could be required to guarantee the capital plan of the Bank if it becomes
undercapitalized for purposes of banking regulations. Any capital loans by a bank holding company to its subsidiary
bank are subordinate in right of payment to deposits and to certain other indebtedness of such subsidiary bank. The
BHCA provides that, in the event of a bank holding company’s bankruptcy, any commitment by the bank holding
company to a federal bank regulatory agency to maintain the capital of a bank subsidiary will be assumed by the
bankruptcy trustee and entitled to priority of payment. Notably, the Dodd-Frank Act has codified the Federal Reserve’s
“source of strength” doctrine. In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act’s new provisions authorize the Federal Reserve to require
a company that directly or indirectly controls a bank to submit reports that are designed both to assess the ability of
such company to comply with its “source of strength” obligations and to enforce the company’s compliance with these
obligations.

Change in Control

As a general proposition, other companies seeking to acquire control of a bank holding company would require the
approval of the Federal Reserve under the BHCA. In addition, individuals or groups of individuals seeking to acquire
control of a bank holding company would need to file a prior notice with the Federal Reserve (which the Federal
Reserve may disapprove under certain circumstances) under the Change in Bank Control Act. Control is conclusively
presumed to exist if an individual or company acquires 25 percent or more of any class of voting securities of the bank
holding company. Control may exist under the Change in Bank Control Act if the individual or company acquires 10
percent or more of any class of voting securities of the bank holding company.

Capital Adequacy Requirements

We and Colony Bank were required to comply with higher minimum capital requirements as of January 1, 2015.
These new rules (“Revised Capital Rules”) implement the Dodd-Frank Act and a separate international regulatory
regime known as “Basel III” (which is discussed below). Prior to January 1, 2015, we and Colony Bank were subject to
risk-based capital guidelines issued by the Federal Reserve and the FDIC for bank holding companies and state
non-member banks, respectively. The risk-based capital guidelines that applied to us and Colony Bank through
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December 31, 2014 were based upon the 1988 capital accord of the international Basel Committee on Banking
Supervision, a committee of central banks and bank supervisors, as implemented by the U.S. federal banking agencies
on an interagency basis.

The following is a brief description of the relevant provisions of the Revised Capital Rules and their impact on our
capital levels. Among other things, the Revised Capital Rules (i) introduced a new capital measure called “Common
Equity Tier 1” (“CET1”), (ii) specified that Tier 1 Capital consist of CET1 and “Additional Tier 1 Capital” instruments
meeting certain requirements, (iii) defined CET1 narrowly by requiring that most deductions/adjustments to
regulatory capital measures be made to CET1 and not to the other components of capital and (iv) expanded the scope
of the deductions/adjustments from capital as compared to existing regulation that apply to us and other banking
organizations.

- 11 -
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1 (Continued)

New Minimum Capital Requirements. The Revised Capital Rules required the following initial minimum capital ratios
as of January 1, 2015:

●4.5% CET1 to risk-weighted assets
●6.0% Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets
●8.0% Total capital to risk-weighted assets

●4.0% Tier 1 capital to average consolidated assets as reported on consolidated financial statements (known as the"leverage ratio")

Capital Conservation Buffer.  The Revised Capital Rules also introduced a new “capital conservation buffer,” composed
entirely of CET1, on top of the minimum risk-weighted asset ratios, which is designed to absorb losses during periods
of economic stress. Banking organizations with a ratio of CET1 to risk-weighted assets above the minimum but below
the capital conservation buffer will face constraints on dividends, equity repurchases and compensation based on the
amount of this difference.

When fully phased in on January 1, 2019, the Revised Capital Rules will require us and Colony Bank to maintain (i) a
minimum ratio of CET1 to risk-weighted assets of 7% (4.5% attributable to CET1 plus the 2.5% capital conservation
buffer); (ii) a minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets of at least 8.5% (6.0% attributable to Tier 1
capital plus the 2.5% capital conservation buffer), (iii) a minimum ratio of Total capital (that is, Tier 1 plus Tier 2) to
risk-weighted assets of at least 10.5% (8.0% attributable to Total capital plus the 2.5% capital conservation buffer)
and (iv) a minimum leverage ratio of 4%, calculated as the ratio of Tier 1 capital to average assets (as compared to a
current minimum leverage ratio of 3% for banking organizations that either have the highest supervisory rating or
have implemented the appropriate federal regulatory authority's risk-adjusted measure for market risk).

Regulatory Deductions.  The Revised Capital Rules provide for a number of deductions from and adjustments to
CET1, including the requirement that mortgage servicing rights, deferred tax assets that arise from operating loss and
tax credit carryforwards, net of associated DTLs, and significant investments in non-consolidated financial entities be
deducted from CET1 to the extent that any one such category exceeds 10% of CET1 or all such categories in the
aggregate exceed 15% of CET1. Implementation of the deductions and other adjustments to CET1 began on January
1, 2015 and will be phased-in over a three-year period (beginning at 40% on January 1, 2015 and an additional 20%
per year thereafter until fully phased-in at January 1, 2018).
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Under the Revised Capital Rules, the effects of certain accumulated other comprehensive items (except gains and
losses on cash flow hedges where the hedged item is not recognized on a banking organization’s balance sheet at fair
value) are not excluded; however, certain banking organizations, including us and Colony Bank, may make a one-time
permanent election to continue to exclude these items. We and Colony Bank each made this election as of January 1,
2015. The Revised Capital Rules also preclude counting certain hybrid securities, such as trust preferred securities, as
Tier 1 capital of bank or thrift holding companies. However, for bank or thrift holding companies that had assets of
less than $15 billion as of December 31, 2009 like us, trust preferred securities issued prior to May 19, 2010 can be
treated as Tier 1 capital to the extent that they do not exceed 25% of Tier 1 capital after applying all capital deductions
and adjustments.

Management believes, at December 31, 2016, that we and Colony Bank meet all capital adequacy requirements under
the Revised Capital Rules on a fully phased-in basis if such requirements were currently effective.

- 12 -
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1 (Continued)

Dividends

The Company is a legal entity separate and distinct from the Bank. The principal source of the Company’s cash flow,
including cash flow to pay dividends to its stockholders, is dividends that the Bank pays to it. A variety of federal and
state laws and regulations affect the ability of the Bank and the Company to pay dividends. For example, Georgia law
requires prior approval for a bank to pay dividends where the aggregate amount of dividends to be declared or
anticipated to be declared during the current calendar year exceeds 50 percent of its net after-tax profits before
dividends for the previous calendar year. A depository institution may not pay any dividend if payment would cause it
to become undercapitalized or if it already is undercapitalized. The federal banking agencies may prevent the payment
of a dividend if they determine that the payment would be an unsafe and unsound banking practice. Moreover, the
federal agencies have issued policy statements that provide that bank holding companies and insured banks should
generally only pay dividends out of current operating earnings. Under a Federal Reserve policy adopted in 2009, the
board of directors of a bank holding company must consider different factors to ensure that its dividend level is
prudent relative to maintaining a strong financial position, and is not based on overly optimistic earnings scenarios,
such as potential events that could affect its ability to pay, while still maintaining a strong financial position. As a
general matter, the Federal Reserve has indicated that the board of directors of a bank holding company should consult
with the Federal Reserve and eliminate, defer or significantly reduce the bank holding company’s dividends if:

●Its net income available to shareholders for the past four quarters, net of dividends previously paid during that period,is not sufficient to fully fund the dividends;

●Its prospective rate of earnings retention is not consistent with its capital needs and overall current and prospectivefinancial condition; or

● It will not meet, or is in danger of not meeting, its minimum regulatory capital adequacy ratios.

Neither the Company nor Colony Bank can give assurances that it will receive all required regulatory approvals to pay
dividends. Subject to these regulatory restrictions, future cash dividends by the Company and the Bank will depend
upon management’s assessment of future capital requirements, contractual restrictions and other factors.

Colony Bank received regulatory approvals in 2014 to pay a dividend of $12 million to the Company, the proceeds of
which were used in 2014 to pay Preferred Stock dividends and interest due on the Company’s junior subordinated
debentures. The Bank was granted approval to pay total dividend payments of $10 million to the Company during
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2015, and the Company used these proceeds to redeem $9.979 million of Preferred Stock during 2015. The Bank was
also granted approval to pay total dividend payments of $9.1 million to the Company during 2016, and the Company
used these proceeds to redeem $8.661 million of Preferred Stock during 2016.

- 13 -
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1 (Continued)

BANK REGULATION

General

The Bank is a commercial bank chartered under the laws of the State of Georgia, and as such is subject to supervision,
regulation and examination by the Georgia Department. The Bank is a member of the FDIC, and their deposits are
insured by the FDIC’s Deposit Insurance Fund up to the amount permitted by law. The FDIC and the Georgia
Department routinely examine the Bank and monitor and regulate all of the Bank’s operations, including such things as
adequacy of reserves, quality and documentation of loans, payments of dividends, capital adequacy, adequacy of
systems and controls, credit underwriting and asset liability management, compliance with laws and establishment of
branches. Interest and other charges collected or contracted for by the Bank are subject to state usury laws and certain
federal laws concerning interest rates. The Bank files periodic reports with the FDIC and the Georgia Department.

FDICIA and Prompt Corrective Action

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 (“FDICIA”), among other things, requires the
federal bank regulatory agencies to take “prompt corrective action” regarding depository institutions that do not meet
minimum capital requirements. FDICIA establishes five regulatory capital tiers: “well capitalized”, “adequately
capitalized”, “undercapitalized”, “significantly undercapitalized”, and “critically undercapitalized”. A depository institution’s
capital tier will depend upon how its capital levels compare to various relevant capital measures and certain other
factors, as established by regulation. The FDICIA imposes progressively more restrictive restraints on operations,
management and capital distributions, depending on the category in which an institution is classified.

All of the federal bank regulatory agencies have adopted regulations establishing relevant capital measures and
relevant capital levels for federally insured depository institutions. Notably, the Revised Capital Rule updated the
prompt corrective action framework to correspond to the rule’s new minimum capital thresholds, which took effect on
January 1, 2015. Under this new framework, (i) a well-capitalized insured depository institution is one having a total
risk-based capital ratio of 10 percent or greater, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 8 percent or greater, a CET1 capital
ratio of 6.5 percent or greater, a leverage capital ratio of 5 percent or greater and that is not subject to any order or
written directive to meet and maintain a specific capital level for any capital measure; (ii) an adequately-capitalized
depository institution is one having a total risk based capital ratio of 8 percent or more, a Tier 1 capital ratio of 6
percent or more, a CET1 capital ratio of 4.5 percent or more, and a leverage ratio of 4 percent or more; (iii) an
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undercapitalized depository institution is one having a total capital ratio of less than 8 percent, a Tier 1 capital ratio of
less than 6 percent, a CET1 capital ratio of less than 4.5 percent, or a leverage ratio of less than 4 percent; and (iv) a
significantly undercapitalized institution is one having a total risk-based capital ratio of less than 6 percent, a Tier 1
capital ratio of less than 4 percent, a CET1 ratio of less than 3 percent or a leverage capital ratio of less than 3 percent.
The Revised Capital Rules retain the 2 percent threshold for critically undercapitalized institutions, but make certain
changes to the framework for calculating an institution’s ratio of tangible equity to total assets.

- 14 -
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1 (Continued)

As of December 31, 2016, Colony Bank was considered “well capitalized,” and the consolidated capital ratios of the
Company were as follows:

December 31, 2016
Amount Percent

Leverage Ratio
Actual $121,862 10.29%
Well-Capitalized Requirement 59,210 5.00
Minimum Required (1) 47,368 4.00
Risk Based Capital:
Tier 1 Capital
Actual 121,862 15.50
Well-Capitalized Requirement 62,880 8.00
Minimum Required (1) 47,160 6.00
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital
Actual 89,002 11.32
Well-Capitalized Requirement 51,090 6.50
Minimum Required (1) 35,370 4.50
Total Capital
Actual 130,785 16.64
Well-Capitalized Requirement 78,600 10.00
Minimum Required (1) 62,880 8.00

(1)Represents the minimum requirement. Institutions that are contemplating acquisitions or anticipating orexperiencing significant growth may be required to maintain a substantially higher leverage ratio.

The federal banking agencies may require banks and bank holding companies subject to enforcement actions to
maintain capital ratios in excess of the minimum ratios otherwise required to be deemed well capitalized, in which
case institutions may no longer be deemed to be well capitalized and may therefore be subject to applicable
restrictions.

FDICIA generally prohibits a depository institution from making any capital distribution (including payment of a
dividend) or paying any management fee to its holding company if the depository institution would thereafter be
undercapitalized. Undercapitalized depository institutions are subject to growth limitations and are required to submit
a capital restoration plan for approval within 90 days of becoming undercapitalized. For a capital restoration plan to be
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acceptable, the depository institution’s parent holding company must guarantee that the institution will comply with
such capital restoration plan. The aggregate liability of the parent holding company is limited to the lesser of 5% of
the depository institution’s total assets at the time it became undercapitalized and the amount necessary to bring the
institution into compliance with applicable capital standards. If a depository institution fails to submit an acceptable
plan, it is treated as if it is significantly undercapitalized. If the controlling holding company fails to fulfill its
obligations under FDICIA and files (or has filed against it) a petition under the federal Bankruptcy Code, the claim for
such liability would be entitled to a priority in such bankruptcy proceeding over third party creditors of the bank
holding company. In addition, an undercapitalized institution is subject to increased monitoring and asset growth
restrictions and is required to obtain prior regulatory approval for acquisitions, new lines of business, and branching.
Such an institution also is barred from soliciting, taking or rolling over brokered deposits.

- 15 -
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1 (Continued)

Significantly undercapitalized depository institutions may be subject to a number of requirements and restrictions,
including orders to sell sufficient voting stock to become adequately capitalized, requirements to reduce total assets,
and cessation of receipt of deposits from correspondent banks. Critically undercapitalized institutions are subject to
the appointment of a receiver or conservator within 90 days of becoming significantly undercapitalized, except under
limited circumstances. Because our company and Colony Bank exceed applicable capital requirements, the respective
managements of our company and Colony Bank do not believe that the provisions of FDICIA have had any material
effect on our company and Colony Bank or our respective operations.

FDICIA also contains a variety of other provisions that may affect the operations of our company and Colony Bank,
including reporting requirements, regulatory standards for real estate lending, “truth in savings” provisions, the
requirement that a depository institution give 90 days’ prior notice to customers and regulatory authorities before
closing any branch, and a prohibition on the acceptance or renewal of brokered deposits by depository institutions that
are not well capitalized, or are adequately capitalized and have not received a waiver from the FDIC. Colony Bank
was well capitalized at December 31, 2016, and brokered deposits are not restricted.

Standards for Safety and Soundness

The Federal Deposit Insurance Act requires the federal bank regulatory agencies to prescribe, by regulation or
guideline, operational and managerial standards for all insured depository institutions relating to: (1) internal controls;
(2) information systems and audit systems; (3) loan documentation; (4) credit underwriting; (5) interest rate risk
exposure; and (6) asset quality.

The agencies also must prescribe standards for asset quality, earnings, and stock valuation, as well as standards for
compensation, fees and benefits. The federal banking agencies have adopted regulations and Interagency Guidelines
Establishing Standards for Safety and Soundness to implement these required standards. These guidelines set forth the
safety and soundness standards used to identify and address problems at insured depository institutions before capital
becomes impaired. Under the regulations, if a regulator determines that a bank fails to meet any standards prescribed
by the guidelines, the regulator may require the bank to submit an acceptable plan to achieve compliance, consistent
with deadlines for the submission and review of such safety and soundness compliance plans.

- 16 -
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1 (Continued)

The federal and Georgia regulatory structures give the bank regulatory agencies extensive discretion in connection
with their supervisory and enforcement activities and examination policies, including policies with respect to the
classification of assets and the establishment of adequate loan loss reserves for regulatory purposes. If, as a result of
an examination, the Georgia Department or the FDIC should determine that the financial condition, capital resources,
asset quality, earnings prospects, management, liquidity, or other aspects of the Bank’s operations are unsatisfactory or
that the Bank or its management is violating or has violated any law or regulation, the Georgia Department and the
FDIC, and separately the FDIC as insurer of the Bank’s deposits, have residual authority to:

●Require affirmative action to correct any conditions resulting from any violation or practice;

●Direct an increase in capital and the maintenance of higher specific minimum capital ratios, which may preclude theBank from being deemed well capitalized and restrict its ability to accept certain brokered deposits;

●Restrict the Bank’s growth geographically, by products and services, or by mergers and acquisitions, includingbidding in FDIC receiverships for failed banks;

●
Enter into or issue informal or formal enforcement actions, including required Board resolutions, memoranda of
understanding, written agreements and consent or cease and desist orders or prompt corrective action orders to take
corrective action and cease unsafe and unsound practices;

●Require prior approval of senior executive officer or director changes; remove officers and directors and assess civilmonetary penalties; and

●Terminate FDIC insurance, revoke the charter and/or take possession of and close and liquidate the Bank or appointthe FDIC as receiver.

FDIC Insurance Assessments

Colony Bank’s deposits are insured by the FDIC’s DIF, and Colony Bank is subject to FDIC assessments for its deposit
insurance, as well as assessments by the FDIC to pay interest on Financing Corporation (“FICO”) bonds.
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Effective April 1, 2011, the FDIC began calculating assessments based on an institution’s average consolidated total
assets less its average tangible equity in accordance with changes mandated by the Dodd-Frank Act. The FDIC also
established a new assessment rate schedule, as well as alternative rate schedules that become effective when the DIF
reserve ratio reaches certain levels. In determining the deposit insurance assessments to be paid by insured depository
institutions, the FDIC generally assigns institutions to one of four risk categories based on supervisory ratings and
capital ratios. Under the FDIC’s risk-based assessment system, insured institutions are assigned to risk categories based
on supervisory evaluations, regulatory capital levels and certain other factors. The FDIC’s current system represents a
change, required by the Dodd-Frank Act, from its prior practice of basing the assessment on an institution’s aggregate
deposits.

The Dodd-Frank Act also increased the minimum designated reserve ratio of the DIF from 1.15% to 1.35% of the
estimated amount of total insured deposits, and eliminated the requirement that the FDIC pay dividends to depository
institutions when the reserve ratio exceeds certain thresholds. Under FDIC rules, banks with at least $10 billion in
assets would also pay a surcharge to enable the reserve ratio to reach 1.35%. In addition, the FDIC collects FICO
deposit assessments, which are calculated off of the assessment base described above.

- 17 -
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Item 1 (Continued)

The Bank’s FDIC insurance expense totaled $604 thousand for 2016. We are generally unable to control the amount of
premiums that we are required to pay for FDIC insurance. If there are additional bank or financial institution failures
or if the FDIC otherwise determines, we may be required to pay even higher FDIC premiums. Any future increases in
FDIC insurance premiums may have a material and adverse effect on our earnings and could have a material adverse
effect on the value of, or market for, our common stock.

Other Regulations

Anti-Money Laundering. The International Money Laundering Abatement and Anti-Terrorism Funding Act of 2001
specifies “know your customer” requirements that obligate financial institutions to take actions to verify the identity of
the account holders in connection with opening an account at any U.S. financial institution. Banking regulators will
consider compliance with the Act’s money laundering provisions in acting upon acquisition and merger proposals.
Sanctions for violations of the Act can be imposed in an amount equal to twice the sum involved in the violating
transaction, up to $1 million.

Under the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct
Terrorism (“USA PATRIOT”) Act of 2001, financial institutions are subject to prohibitions against specified financial
transactions and account relationships as well as enhanced due diligence and “know your customer” standards in their
dealings with foreign financial institutions and foreign customers.

The USA PATRIOT Act requires financial institutions to establish anti-money laundering programs with minimum
standards that include:

● The development of internal policies, procedures, and controls;
● The designation of a compliance officer;
● An ongoing employee training program; and
● An independent audit function to test the programs.

Bank regulators routinely examine institutions for compliance with these anti-money laundering obligations and
recently have been active in imposing “cease and desist” and other regulatory orders and money penalty sanctions
against institutions found to be in violation of these requirements. In addition, the Financial Crimes Enforcement
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Network has proposed new regulations that would require financial institutions to obtain beneficial ownership
information for certain accounts, however, it has yet to establish final regulations on this topic.

Economic Sanctions. The Office of Foreign Assets Control (“OFAC”) is responsible for helping to ensure that U.S.
entities do not engage in transactions with certain prohibited parties, as defined by various Executive Orders and acts
of Congress. OFAC publishes, and routinely updates, lists of names of persons and organizations suspected of aiding,
harboring or engaging in terrorist acts, including the Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons List. If we
find a name on any transaction, account or wire transfer that is on an OFAC list, we must undertake certain specified
activities, which could include blocking or freezing the account or transaction requested, and we must notify the
appropriate authorities.
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Item 1 (Continued)

Transactions with Related Parties. We are a legal entity separate and distinct from Colony Bank and our other
subsidiaries. Various legal limitations restrict our banking subsidiary from lending or otherwise supplying funds to us
or our non-bank subsidiaries. We and our banking subsidiary are subject to Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act
and the corresponding provisions of Federal Reserve Regulation W thereunder. Section 23A defines “covered
transactions” to include, among other types of transactions, extensions of credit, and limits a bank’s covered transactions
with any of its “affiliates” to 10% of such bank’s capital and surplus. All covered and exempt transactions between a
bank and its affiliates must be on terms and conditions consistent with safe and sound banking practices, and banks
and their operating subsidiaries are prohibited from purchasing low-quality assets from the bank’s affiliates. Finally,
Section 23A requires that all of a bank’s extensions of credit to its affiliates be appropriately secured by acceptable
collateral, generally United States government or agency securities.

We and our bank subsidiary also are subject to Section 23B of the Federal Reserve Act and the corresponding
provisions of Federal Reserve Regulation W thereunder, which generally require covered transactions and certain
other transactions between a bank and its affiliates to be on terms, including credit standards, that are substantially the
same, or at least as favorable to, the bank as those prevailing at the time for similar transactions with unaffiliated
companies.

The Dodd-Frank Act generally enhanced the restrictions on banks’ transactions with affiliates under Sections 23A and
23B of the Federal Reserve Act, including an expansion of the definition of “covered transactions” and an increase in
the amount of time for which collateral requirements regarding covered credit transactions must be satisfied.
Specifically, Section 608 of the Dodd-Frank Act broadened the definition of “covered transactions” to include derivative
transactions and the borrowing or lending of securities if the transaction will cause a bank to have credit exposure to
an affiliate. The revised definition also includes the acceptance of debt obligations of an affiliate as collateral for a
loan or extension of credit to a third party. Furthermore, reverse repurchase transactions will be viewed as extensions
of credit (instead of asset purchases) and thus become subject to collateral requirements. The ability of the Federal
Reserve to grant exemptions from these restrictions is also narrowed by the Dodd-Frank Act, including with respect to
the requirement for the OCC, FDIC and Federal Reserve to coordinate with one another.

Concentrations in Lending. During 2006, the federal bank regulatory agencies released guidance on “Concentrations in
Commercial Real Estate Lending” (the “Guidance”) and advised financial institutions of the risks posed by commercial
real estate (“CRE”) lending concentrations. The Guidance requires that appropriate processes be in place to identify,
monitor and control risks associated with real estate lending concentrations. Higher allowances for loan losses and
capital levels may also be required. The Guidance is triggered when CRE loan concentrations exceed either:
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●Total reported loans for construction, land development, and other land of 100 percent or more of a bank’s total riskbased capital; or

●Total reported loans secured by multifamily and nonfarm nonresidential properties and loans for construction, landdevelopment, and other land of 300 percent or more of a bank’s total risk based capital.

The Guidance also applies when a bank has a sharp increase in CRE loans or has significant concentrations of CRE
secured by a particular property type.
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Item 1 (Continued)

Community Reinvestment Act. We and our banking subsidiary are subject to the provisions of the Community
Reinvestment Act (“CRA”) and related federal bank regulatory agencies’ regulations. Under the CRA, all banks and
thrifts have a continuing and affirmative obligation, consistent with their safe and sound operation, to help meet the
credit needs for their entire communities, including low- and moderate-income neighborhoods. The CRA requires a
depository institution’s primary federal regulator, in connection with its examination of the institution, to assess the
institution’s record of assessing and meeting the credit needs of the communities served by that institution, including
low- and moderate-income neighborhoods. The bank regulatory agency’s assessment of the institution’s record is made
available to the public. Further, such assessment is required of any institution which has applied to: (i) charter a
national bank; (ii) obtain deposit insurance coverage for a newly-chartered institution; (iii) establish a new branch
office that accepts deposits; (iv) relocate an office; (v) merge or consolidate with, or acquire the assets or assume the
liabilities of, a federally regulated financial institution, or (vi) expand other activities, including engaging in financial
services activities authorized by the GLBA. A less than satisfactory CRA rating will slow, if not preclude, expansion
of banking activities and prevent a company from becoming or remaining a financial holding company.

Following the enactment of the GLBA, CRA agreements with private parties must be disclosed and annual CRA
reports must be made to a bank’s primary federal regulator. A bank holding company will not be permitted to become
or remain a financial holding company and no new activities authorized under GLBA may be commenced by a
holding company or by a bank financial subsidiary if any of its bank subsidiaries received less than a “satisfactory” CRA
rating in its latest CRA examination. Federal CRA regulations require, among other things, that evidence of
discrimination against applicants on a prohibited basis, and illegal or abusive lending practices be considered in the
CRA evaluation.

Privacy and Data Security.  The GLBA generally prohibits disclosure of consumer information to non-affiliated third
parties unless the consumer has been given the opportunity to object and has not objected to such disclosure. Financial
institutions are further required to disclose their privacy policies to consumers annually. Financial institutions,
however, will be required to comply with state law if it is more protective of consumer privacy than the GLBA. The
GLBA also directed federal regulators, including the FDIC and the OCC, to prescribe standards for the security of
consumer information. Colony Bank is subject to such standards, as well as standards for notifying customers in the
event of a security breach. Under federal law, Colony Bank must disclose its privacy policy to consumers, permit
customers to opt out of having nonpublic customer information disclosed to third parties in certain circumstances, and
allow customers to opt out of receiving marketing solicitations based on information about the customer received from
another subsidiary. States may adopt more extensive privacy protections. We are similarly required to have an
information security program to safeguard the confidentiality and security of customer information and to ensure
proper disposal. Customers must be notified when unauthorized disclosure involves sensitive customer information
that may be misused.
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Consumer Regulation.  The Bank must also comply with numerous federal and state consumer protection statutes and
implementing regulations, including the Fair Credit Reporting Act, as amended by the Fair and Accurate Credit
Transactions Act, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Truth in Lending Act, the Fair Housing Act, the Home
Mortgage Disclosure Act, the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, the National Flood Insurance Act, and various
federal and state privacy protection laws. Noncompliance with these laws could subject the Bank to lawsuits and
could also result in administrative penalties, including, fines and reimbursements. The Bank and the Company are also
subject to federal and state laws prohibiting unfair, deceptive, or abusive acts and practices.
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Item 1 (Continued)

These laws and regulations mandate certain disclosure and reporting requirements and regulate the manner in which
financial institutions must deal with customers when taking deposits, making loans, servicing, collecting, and
foreclosure of loans, and providing other services. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations can subject the
Bank to various penalties, including but not limited to enforcement actions, injunctions, fines or criminal penalties,
punitive damages to consumers, and the loss of certain contractual rights.

These laws and regulations include, among numerous other things, provisions that:

● Limit the interest and other charges collected or contracted for by Colony Bank, including new rules
respecting the terms of credit cards and of debit card overdrafts;

● Govern Colony Bank’s disclosures of credit terms to consumer borrowers;

● Require Colony Bank to provide information to enable the public and public officials to determine whether it
is fulfilling its obligation to help meet the housing needs of the community it serves;

● Prohibit Colony Bank from discriminating on the basis of race, creed or other prohibited factors when it
makes decisions to extend credit; 

● Govern the manner in which Colony Bank may collect consumer debts; and

● Prohibit unfair, deceptive or abusive acts or practices in the provision of consumer financial products and
services.

Mortgage-Related Reforms. The CFPB adopted a rule that implements the ability-to-repay and qualified mortgage
provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act (the “ATR/QM rule”), which took effect on January 10, 2014, and has impacted our
residential mortgage lending practices, and the residential mortgage market generally. The ATR/QM rule requires
lenders to consider, among other things, income, employment status, assets, payment amounts, and credit history
before approving a mortgage, and provides a compliance “safe harbor” for lenders that issue certain “qualified mortgages.”
The ATR/QM rule defines a “qualified mortgage” to have certain specified characteristics, and generally prohibit loans
with negative amortization, interest-only payments, balloon payments, or terms exceeding 30 years from being
qualified mortgages. The rule also establishes general underwriting criteria for qualified mortgages, including that
monthly payments be calculated based on the highest payment that will apply in the first five years of the loan and that
the borrower have a total debt-to-income ratio that is less than or equal to 43 percent. While “qualified mortgages” will
generally be afforded safe harbor status, a rebuttable presumption of compliance with the ability-to-repay
requirements will attach to “qualified mortgages” that are “higher priced mortgages” (which are generally subprime loans).
In particular, it will prevent banks from making “no doc” and “low doc” home loans, as the rules require that banks
determine a consumer’s ability to pay based in part on verified and documented information. Because we do not
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originate “no doc” or “low doc” loans, we do not believe this regulation will have a significant effect on our operations.
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Item 1 (Continued)

In addition, under rules that became effective December 24, 2015, the securitizer of asset-backed securities must
retain not less than 5 percent of the credit risk of the assets collateralizing the asset-backed securities, unless subject to
an exemption for asset-backed securities that are collateralized exclusively by residential mortgages that qualify as
“qualified residential mortgages.” These definitions are expected to significantly shape the parameters for the majority
of consumer mortgage lending in the U.S.

Reflecting the CFPB's focus on the residential mortgage lending market, the CFPB has also issued rules to implement
requirements of the Dodd-Frank Act pertaining to mortgage loan origination (including with respect to loan originator
compensation and loan originator qualifications) and has finalized integrated mortgage disclosure rules that replace
and combine certain requirements under the Truth in Lending Act and the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act. In
addition, the CFPB has issued rules that require servicers to comply with new standards and practices with regard to:
error correction; information disclosure; force-placement of insurance; information management policies and
procedures; requiring information about mortgage loss mitigation options be provided to delinquent borrowers;
providing delinquent borrowers access to servicer personnel with continuity of contact about the borrower’s mortgage
loan account; and evaluating borrowers’ applications for available loss mitigation options. These rules also address
initial rate adjustment notices for adjustable-rate mortgages (ARMs), periodic statements for residential mortgage
loans, and prompt crediting of mortgage payments and response to requests for payoff amounts. The CFPB has
indicated that it expects to issue additional mortgage-related rules in the future.

The CFPB has indicated that, in addition to specific statutory mandates, it is working on a wide range of initiatives to
address issues in markets for consumer financial products and services. The CFPB has also undertaken an effort to
“streamline” consumer regulations and has established a database to collect, track and make public consumer
complaints, including complaints against individual financial institutions.

The CFPB also has broad authority to prohibit unfair, deceptive and abusive acts and practices (“UDAAP”) and to
investigate and penalize financial institutions that violate this prohibition. While the statutory language of the
Dodd-Frank Act sets forth the standards for acts and practices that violate this prohibition, certain aspects of these
standards are untested, which has created some uncertainty regarding how the CFPB will exercise this authority. The
CFPB has, however, brought enforcement actions against certain financial institutions for UDAAP violations and
issued some guidance on the topic, which provides insight into the agency’s expectations regarding these standards.
Among other things, CFPB guidance and its UDAAP-related enforcement actions have emphasized that management
of third-party service providers is essential to effective UDAAP compliance and that the CFPB is particularly focused
on marketing and sales practices.
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1 (Continued)

We cannot fully predict the effect that implementing regulations or revisions to existing regulations enforcement
actions or other activity of the CFPB may have on our businesses. 

The deposit operations of Colony Bank are also subject to laws and regulations that:

●Require Colony Bank to adequately disclose the interest rates and other terms of consumer deposit accounts;

●Impose a duty on Colony Bank to maintain the confidentiality of consumer financial records and prescribeprocedures for complying with administrative subpoenas of financial records;

●Require escheatment of unclaimed funds to the appropriate state agencies after the passage of certain statutory timeframes; and

●Govern automatic deposits to and withdrawals from deposit accounts with Colony Bank and the rights and liabilitiesof customers who use automated teller machines, or ATMs, and other electronic banking services.

●Limit the Bank’s ability to charge fees for the payment of overdrafts for one-time debit and ATM card transactions.

Non-Discrimination Policies. Colony Bank is also subject to, among other things, the provisions of the Equal Credit
Opportunity Act (the “ECOA”) and the Fair Housing Act (the “FHA”), both of which prohibit discrimination based on
race or color, religion, national origin, sex, and familial status in any aspect of a consumer or commercial credit or
residential real estate transaction. The Department of Justice (the “DOJ”), and the federal bank regulatory agencies have
issued an Interagency Policy Statement on Discrimination in Lending that provides guidance to financial institutions
in determining whether discrimination exists, how the agencies will respond to lending discrimination, and what steps
lenders might take to prevent discriminatory lending practices. The DOJ has increased its efforts to prosecute what it
regards as violations of the ECOA and FHA.

Enforcement Authority. Colony Bank and its “institution-affiliated parties,” including management, employees, agents,
independent contractors and consultants, such as attorneys and accountants and others who participate in the conduct
of the institution’s affairs, are subject to potential civil and criminal penalties for violations of law, regulations or
written orders of a government agency. Violations can include failure to timely file required reports, filing false or
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misleading information or submitting inaccurate reports. Civil penalties may be as high as $1,000,000 a day for such
violations, and criminal penalties for some financial institution crimes may include imprisonment for 20 years.
Regulators have flexibility to commence enforcement actions against institutions and institution-affiliated parties, and
the FDIC has the authority to terminate deposit insurance. When issued by a banking agency, cease-and-desist orders
may, among other things, require affirmative action to correct any harm resulting from a violation or practice,
including restitution, reimbursement, indemnifications or guarantees against loss. A financial institution may also be
ordered to restrict its growth, dispose of certain assets, rescind agreements or contracts, or take other actions
determined to be appropriate by the ordering agency. The federal banking agencies also may remove a director or
officer from an insured depository institution (or bar them from the industry) if a violation is willful or reckless.
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1 (Continued)

Evolving Legislation and Regulatory Action. Proposals for new statutes and regulations are frequently circulated at
both the federal and state levels, and may include wide-ranging changes to the structures, regulations and competitive
relationships of financial institutions. We cannot predict whether new legislation will be enacted and, if enacted, the
effect that it, or any regulations, would have on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Other Regulatory Matters. We and our subsidiaries are subject to oversight by the SEC, the Financial Industry
Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”), the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (“PCAOB”), Nasdaq and various
state securities regulators. We and our subsidiaries have from time to time received requests for information from
regulatory authorities in various states, including state attorneys general, securities regulators and other regulatory
authorities, concerning our business practices. Such requests are considered incidental to the normal conduct of
business.

Iran Sanctions Related Disclosure

Under the Iran Threat Reduction and Syrian Human Rights Act of 2012, which added Section 13(r) to the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, we are required to include certain disclosures in our periodic reports if we or any
of our “affiliates” knowingly engaged in certain specified activities during the period covered by this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. Because the SEC defines the term “affiliate” broadly, it includes any entity controlled by us as well as any
person or entity that controls us or is under common control with us. We do not believe we and our consolidated
subsidiary have knowingly engaged in any transaction or dealing reportable under Section 13(r) of the Exchange Act
during fiscal year 2015.

Risk Factors

Strong competition and changing banking environment may limit growth and profitability.

Competition in the banking and financial services industry is intense. We compete with commercial banks, savings
institutions, mortgage brokerage firms, credit unions, finance companies, mutual funds, insurance companies,
brokerage and investment banking firms operating locally and elsewhere, and non-traditional financial institutions,
including non-depository financial services providers. Many of these competitors (whether regional or national
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institutions) have substantially greater resources and lending limits than we have and may offer certain services that
we do not or cannot provide. Additionally, non-traditional financial institutions may not have the same regulatory
requirements or burdens as we do. Despite playing a rapidly increasing role in the financial services industry including
providing services previously limited to commercial banks. Such competition could ultimately limit our growth,
profitability and shareholder value. Our profitability depends upon our ability to successfully compete in our market
areas and adapt to the ever changing banking environment.

Any future economic downturn could have a material adverse effect on our capital, financial condition, results
of operations, and future growth.

Our management continually monitors market conditions and economic factors throughout our footprint. While recent
economic data suggests that overall economic conditions have improved, as supported by our improved credit trends,
we cannot make any assurance that these economic conditions - both nationally and in our principal markets - will not
worsen in the future. If these conditions were to worsen, then we could see a sharp increase in our total net charge-offs
and also be required to significantly increase our allowance for loan losses. Furthermore, the demand for loans and our
other products and services could decline. Any future increase in our non-performing assets and related increases in
our provision for loan losses, coupled with a potential decrease in the demand for loans and our other products and
services, could negatively affect our business and could have a material adverse effect on our capital, financial
condition, results of operations and future growth.
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1A

A reduction in consumer confidence could negatively impact our results of operations and financial condition.

The beginning of 2017 has seen significant market volatility driven in part by concerns relating to, among other
things, the 2016 U.S. presidential election. The continued impact of this issue could adversely affect the U.S. or global
economies, with direct or indirect impacts on the Company and its business. Results could include drops in consumer
and business confidence, credit deterioration, diminished capital markets activity, and delays in the Federal Reserve
Board increases in interest rates.

Our business may be adversely affected by downturns in our national and local economies.

Our operations are significantly affected by national and local economic conditions. Substantially all of our loans are
to businesses and individuals in Georgia. All of our branches and most of our deposit customers are also located in
this area. A decline in the economies in which we operate could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

A deterioration in economic conditions in the market areas we serve could result in the following consequences, any
of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations:

●Demand for our loans, deposits and services may decline;

●Loan delinquencies, problem assets and foreclosures may increase;

●Weak economic conditions may continue to limit the demand for loans by creditworthy borrowers, limiting our
capacity to leverage our retail deposits and maintain our net interest income;

●Collateral for our loans may decline further in value; and

●The amount of our low-cost or non-interest bearing deposits may decrease.
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Changes in interest rates could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Our results of operations and financial condition are significantly affected by changes in interest rates. Our results of
operations depend substantially on our net interest income, which is the difference between the interest income we
earn on our interest-earning assets, such as loans and securities, and the interest expense we pay on our
interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits and borrowings. Because our interest-bearing liabilities generally reprice
or mature more quickly than our interest-earning assets, a sustained increase in interest rates generally would tend to
reduce our interest income.
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1A (Continued)

In an attempt to help the overall economy, the Federal Reserve Board has kept interest rates low through its targeted
Fed Funds rate. In December 2016, the Federal Reserve Board increased the Fed Funds rate by 25 basis points and
intends further increases during 2017, subject to economic conditions. As the Federal Reserve Board increases the Fed
Funds rate, overall interest rates will likely rise, which may negatively impact the U.S. economic recovery. Further,
changes in monetary policy, including changes in interest rates, could influence (i) the amount of interest we receive
on loans and securities, (ii) the amount of interest we pay on deposits and borrowings, (iii) our ability to originate
loans and obtain deposits, (iv) the fair value of our assets and liabilities, and (v) the reinvestment risk associated with
a reduced duration of our mortgage-backed securities portfolio as borrowers refinance to reduce borrowing costs.
When interest-bearing liabilities reprice or mature more quickly than interest-earning assets, an increase in interest
rates generally would tend to result in a decrease in net interest income.

Changes in interest rates also affect the current fair value of our interest-earning securities portfolio. Generally, the
value of securities moves inversely with changes in interest rates. At December 31, 2016, the fair value of our
portfolio of investment securities, mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations
totaled $323,657,870. Net unrealized losses on these securities totaled $7,609,303 at December 31, 2016.

Additionally, 5.54% of our one- to four-family loan portfolio is comprised of adjustable-rate loans. Any rise in market
interest rates may result in increased payments for borrowers who have adjustable-rate mortgage loans, which would
increase the possibility of default.

Although management believes it has implemented an effective asset and liability management strategy to manage the
potential effects of changes in interest rates, including the use of adjustable rate and/or short-term assets, and FHLB
advances or longer term repurchase agreements, any substantial, unexpected, prolonged change in market interest
rates could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of our operation and/or our strategies
may not always be successful in managing the risk associated with changes in interest rates.

Our allowance for loan losses may not cover actual losses, and we may be required to materially increase our
allowance, which may adversely affect our capital, financial condition and results of operations.

We derive the most significant portion of our revenues from our lending activities. When we lend money, commit to
lend money or enter into a letter of credit or other contract with a counterparty, we incur credit risk, which is the risk
of losses if our borrowers do not repay their loans or our counterparties fail to perform according to the terms of their
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contracts. We estimate and maintain an allowance for loan losses, which is a reserve established through a provision
for loan losses charged to expenses, which represents management's best estimate of probable credit losses that have
been incurred within the existing portfolio of loans, as described under [Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements in this Report and under “Allowance for Loan Losses” under “Part II - Item 7. Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” of this Report.]
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1A (Continued)

The allowance, in the judgment of management, is established to reserve for estimated loan losses and risks inherent
in the loan portfolio. The determination of the appropriate level of the allowance for loan losses inherently involves a
high degree of subjectivity and requires us to make significant estimates of current credit risks using existing
qualitative and quantitative information, all of which may undergo material changes. Changes in economic conditions
affecting borrowers, new information regarding existing loans, identification of additional problem loans, risk ratings,
and other factors, both within and outside of our control, may require an increase in the allowance for loan losses.

Because the risk rating of the loans is dependent on some subjective information and subject to changes in the
borrower's credit risk profile, evolving local market conditions and other factors, it can be difficult for us to predict the
effects that those factors will have on the classifications assigned to the loan portfolio, and thus difficult to anticipate
the velocity or volume of the migration of loans through the classification process and effect on the level of the
allowance for loan losses. An increase in the allowance for loan losses would result in a decrease in net income and
capital, and could have a material adverse effect on our capital, financial condition and results of operations.
Accordingly, we monitor our credit quality and our reserve requirements and use that as a basis for capital planning
and other purposes. [See “Part II - Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations – Capital and Liquidity” of this Report for further information.]

Our commercial real estate, real estate construction, and commercial business loans increase our exposure to
credit risks.

Over the last several years, we have increased our non-residential lending in order to improve the yield and reduce the
average duration of our assets. At December 31, 2016, our portfolio of commercial real estate, real estate construction,
and commercial business loans totaled $438,303,718, or 58.11% of total loans, compared to $443,563,618,
or 58.47% of total loans at December 31, 2015. At December 31, 2016, the amount of nonperforming commercial real
estate, real estate construction, and commercial business loans was $7,185,000, or 58.18% of total nonperforming
loans. These loans may expose us to a greater risk of non-payment and loss than residential real estate loans because,
in the case of commercial loans, repayment often depends on the successful operation and earnings of the borrower's
businesses and, in the case of consumer loans, the applicable collateral is subject to rapid depreciation. Additionally,
commercial real estate loans typically involve larger loan balances to single borrowers or groups of related borrowers
compared to residential real estate loans. If loans that are collateralized by real estate become troubled and the value of
the real estate has been significantly impaired, then we may not be able to recover the full contractual amount of
principal and interest due on the loan, which could cause us to increase our provision for loan losses and adversely
affect our financial condition and operating results.
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We hold certain intangible assets that in the future could be classified as either partially or fully impaired,
which would reduce our earnings and the book values of these assets.

Pursuant to applicable accounting requirements, we are required to periodically test our goodwill and core deposit
intangible assets for impairment. The impairment testing process considers a variety of factors, including the current
market price of our common shares, the estimated net present value of our assets and liabilities and information
concerning the terminal valuation of similarly situated insured depository institutions. Future impairment testing may
result in a partial or full impairment of the value of our goodwill or core deposit intangible assets, or both. If an
impairment determination is made in a future reporting period, our earnings and the book value of these intangible
assets will be reduced by the amount of the impairment.
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1A (Continued)

Acquisitions could disrupt our business and adversely affect our operating results.

To the extent that we grow through acquisitions, we may not be able to adequately or profitably manage this growth.
In addition, such acquisitions may involve the issuance of securities, which may have a dilutive effect on earnings per
share. Acquiring banks, bank branches or businesses involves risks commonly associated with acquisitions, including:

●Potential exposure to unknown or contingent liabilities we acquire;

●Exposure to potential asset quality problems of the acquired financial institutions, businesses or branches;

●Difficulty and expense of integrating the operations and personnel of financial institutions, businesses or branches weacquire;

●Higher than expected deposit attrition;

●Potential diversion of our management’s time and attention;

●The possible loss of key employees and customers of financial institutions, businesses or branches we acquire;

●Difficulty in safely investing any cash generated by the acquisition;

●Inability to utilize potential tax benefits from such transactions;

●Difficulty in estimating the fair value of the financial institutions, businesses or branches to be acquired which affectsthe profits we generate from the acquisitions; and

●Potential changes in banking or tax laws or regulations that may affect the financial institutions or businesses to beacquired.
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Reductions in service charge income or failure to comply with payment network rules could negatively impact
our earnings.

We derive significant revenue from service charges on deposit accounts, the bulk of which comes from
overdraft-related fees. Changes in banking regulations could have an adverse impact on our ability to derive income
from service charges. Increased competition from other financial institutions or changes in consumer behavior could
lead to declines in our deposit balances, which would result in a decline in service charge fees. Such a reduction could
have a material impact on our earnings.
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1A (Continued)

Reductions in interchange income could negatively impact our earnings.

Interchange income is derived from fees paid by merchants to the interchange network in exchange for the use of the
network's infrastructure and payment facilitation. These fees are paid to card issuers to compensate them for the costs
associated with issuance and operation. We earn interchange fees on card transactions from debit cards,
including $2,410,035 during the year ended December 31, 2016. Merchants have attempted to negotiate lower
interchange rates, and the Durbin Amendment to the Dodd-Frank Act limits the amount of interchange fees that may
be charged for certain debit card transactions. Merchants may also continue to pursue alternative payment platforms,
such as Apple Pay, to lower their processing costs. Any such new payment system may reduce our interchange
income. Our failure to comply with the operating regulations set forth by payment card networks, which may change,
could subject us to penalties, fees or the termination of our license to use the networks. Any of these scenarios could
have a material impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Because the nature of the financial services business involves a high volume of transactions, we face significant
operational risks.

We are exposed to many types of operation risks, including reputational risk, legal and regulatory and compliance
risk, the risk of fraud or theft by employees or persons outside our company, including the execution of unauthorized
transactions by employees or operational errors, clerical or record-keeping errors or those resulting from faulty or
disabled computer or telecommunications systems. Negative public opinion can result from our actual or alleged
conduct in any number of activities, including lending practices, corporate governance and acquisitions and from
actions taken by government regulators and community organizations in response to those activities. Negative public
opinion can adversely affect our ability to attract and keep customers and can expose us to litigation and regulatory
action. Actual or alleged conduct by Colony Bank can result in negative public opinion about our business. Negative
public opinion could also affect our credit ratings, which are important to our access to unsecured wholesale
borrowings.

Our business involves storing and processing sensitive consumer and business customer data. If personal, non-public,
confidential or proprietary information of customers in our possession were to be mishandled or misused, we could
suffer significant regulatory consequences, reputational damage and financial loss. Such mishandling or misuse could
include, for example, if such information were erroneously provided to parties who were not permitted to have that
information, either by fault of our systems, employees, or counterparties, or where such information is intercepted or
otherwise inappropriately taken by third parties. Furthermore, a cybersecurity breach could result in theft of such data.
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Because we operate in diverse markets and rely on the ability of our employees and systems to process a high number
of transactions, certain errors may be repeated or compounded before they are discovered and successfully rectified.
Our necessary dependence upon automated systems to record and process transactions, and our large transaction
volume, may further increase the risk that technical flaws or employee tampering or manipulation of those systems
will result in losses that are difficult to detect. We also may be subject to disruptions of our operating systems arising
from events that are wholly or partially beyond our control (for example, security breaches, denial of service attacks,
viruses, worms and other disruptive problems caused by hackers, computer break-ins, phishing and other disruptions
or electrical or telecommunications outages, or natural disasters, disease pandemics or other damage to property or
physical assets) which may result in violations of consumer privacy laws including the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act,
cause significant liability to us and give reason for existing and potential customers to refrain from doing business
with us. Although we, with the help of third-party service providers, intend to continue to implement security
technology and establish operational procedures to prevent such damage and potential liability, there can be no
assurance that these security measures will be successful. In addition, advances in computer capabilities, new
discoveries in the field of cryptography or other developments could result in a compromise or breach of the
algorithms we and our third-party service providers use to encrypt and protect customer transaction data. We are
further exposed to the risk that our external vendors may be unable to fulfill their contractual obligations (or will be
subject to the same risk of fraud or operational errors by their respective employees as we are) and to the risk that our
(or our vendors’) business continuity and data security systems prove to be inadequate. The occurrence of any of these
risks could result in a diminished ability of us to operate our business (for example, by requiring us to expend
significant resources to correct the defect), as well as potential liability to clients, reputational damage and regulatory
intervention, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition or operations results, perhaps materially.
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1A (Continued)

As an issuer of debit cards, we are exposed to losses in the event that holders of our cards experience fraud on
their card accounts.

Our customers regularly use Colony Bank-issued debit cards to pay for transactions with retailers and other
businesses. There is the risk of data security breaches at these retailers and other businesses that could result in the
misappropriation of our customers’ debit card information. When our customers use Colony Bank-issued cards to
make purchases from those businesses, card account information is provided to the business. If the business’s systems
that process or store card account information are subject to a data security breach, holders of our cards who have
made purchases from that business may experience fraud on their card accounts. Colony Bank may suffer losses
associated with reimbursing our customers for such fraudulent transactions on customers’ card accounts, as well as for
other costs related to data security compromise events, such as replacing cards associated with compromised card
accounts.

The financial services market is undergoing rapid technological changes, and if we are unable to stay current
with those changes, we will not be able to effectively compete.

The financial services market, including banking services, is undergoing rapid changes with frequent introductions of
new technology-driven products and services. Our future success will depend, in part, on our ability to keep pace with
the technological changes and to use technology to satisfy and grow customer demand for our products and services
and to create additional efficiencies in our operations. We expect that we will need to make substantial investments in
our technology and information systems to compete effectively and to stay current with technological changes. Some
of our competitors have substantially greater resources to invest in technological improvements and will be able to
invest more heavily in developing and adopting new technologies, which may put us at a competitive disadvantage.

We may not be able to effectively implement new technology-driven products and services or be successful in
marketing these products and services to our customers. As a result, our ability to effectively compete to retain or
acquire new business may be impaired, and our business, financial condition or results of operations may be adversely
affected.
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Item 1A (Continued)

We face significant cyber and data security risk that could result in the dissemination of confidential and
sensitive information, adversely affecting our business or reputation and exposing us to material liabilities.

Our business model enables our customers to utilize the Internet and other remote channels to transact business. As a
financial institution, we are under continuous threat of loss due to the swiftness and sophistication of hacking and
cyber-attacks. This risk, although considerable at the present, will only increase in the future. Two of the most
significant cyber-attack risks that we face are electronic fraud and loss of sensitive customer data. Loss from
electronic fraud occurs when cybercriminals breach and extract funds directly from customer accounts or our own
accounts. The attempts to breach sensitive customer data, such as account numbers, social security numbers, or other
personal information are less frequent but would present significant legal and/or regulatory costs to us if successful, as
well as potentially damage our reputation among the markets we serve. Our risk and exposure to these matters will
remain relevant because of the evolving nature and complexity of the threats posed by cybercriminals and hackers
along with our plans to continue to provide Internet banking and mobile banking avenues for transacting business.
While we have not experienced material losses relating to cyber-attacks or other information security breaches to date,
we have been the subject of attempted hacking and cyber-attacks and there can be no assurance that we will not suffer
such losses in the future.

The occurrence of any cyber-attack or information security breach could result in material adverse consequences
including damage to our reputation and the loss of current or potential customers. We also could face litigation or
additional regulatory scrutiny due to such an occurrence. Litigation or regulatory actions in turn could lead to material
liability, including, but not limited to, fines and penalties or reimbursement to customers adversely affected by a data
breach. Even if we do not suffer any material adverse consequences as a result of events affecting us directly,
successful attacks or systems failures at other financial institutions could lead to a general loss of customer confidence
in our company.

We continually review our network and systems security and make the necessary investments to improve the
resiliency of our systems and their security from attack. Nonetheless, there remains the risk that we may be materially
harmed by a cyber-attack or information security breach. Methods used to attack information systems continue to
evolve in sophistication, swiftness, and frequency and can occur from a variety of sources, such as foreign
governments, hacktivists, or other well-financed entities, and may originate from remote and less regulated areas of
the world. If such an attack or breach were to occur, we might not be able to address and find a solution in a timely
and adequate manner. We will, however, promptly take reasonable and customary measures to address the situation.
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1A (Continued)

As a community bank, our recruitment and retention efforts may not be sufficient enough to implement our
business strategy and execute successful operations.

Our financial success depends upon our ability to attract and retain highly motivated, well-qualified personnel. We
face significant competition in the recruitment of qualified employees from financial institutions and others. As we
continue to grow, we may find our recruitment and retention efforts more challenging. If we do not succeed in
attracting, hiring, and integrating experienced or qualified personnel, we may not be able to successfully implement
our business strategy, and we may be required to substantially increase our overall compensation or benefits to attract
and retain such employees. Furthermore, in June 2010, the Federal Reserve, the Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency, the Office of Thrift Supervision, and the FDIC jointly issued comprehensive final guidance designed to
ensure that incentive compensation policies do not undermine the safety and soundness of banking organizations by
encouraging employees to take imprudent risks. This regulation significantly restricts the amount, form, and context in
which we pay incentive-based compensation and may put us at a competitive disadvantage compared to non-financial
institutions in terms of attracting and retaining senior level employees.

We are a community bank and our ability to maintain our reputation is critical to the success of our business
and the failure to do so may materially adversely affect our performance.

Our reputation is one of the most valuable components of our business. As such, we strive to conduct our business in a
manner that enhances our reputation. This is done, in part, by recruiting, hiring and retaining employees who share our
core values of being an integral part of the communities we serve, delivering superior service to our customers and
caring about our customers and associates. If our reputation is negatively affected, by the actions of our employees or
otherwise, our business and, therefore, our operating results may be materially adversely affected.

We rely on third-party vendors for key components of our business.

Many key components of our operations, including data processing, recording and monitoring transactions, online
interfaces and services, internet connections and network access are provided by other companies. Our vendor
management process selects third-party vendors carefully, but we do not control their actions. Problems, including
disruptions in communication, security breaches, or failure of a vendor to provide services, could hurt our operations
or our relationships with customers. If our vendors suffer financial or operational issues, our operations and reputation
could suffer if it harms the vendors’ ability to serve us and our customers. Third-party vendors are also a source of
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operational and information security risk to us. Replacing or renegotiating contracts with vendors could entail
significant operational expense and delays. The use of third-party vendors represents an unavoidable inherent risk to
our company.
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Item 1A (Continued)

Hurricanes or other adverse weather events would negatively affect our local economies or disrupt our
operations, which would have an adverse effect on our business or results of operations.

Our market area is located in the southeastern region of the United States and is susceptible to natural disasters, such
as hurricanes, tornadoes, tropical storms, other severe weather events and related flooding and wind damage, and
man-made disasters. These natural disasters could negatively impact regional economic conditions, cause a decline in
the value or destruction of mortgaged properties and an increase in the risk of delinquencies, foreclosures or loss on
loans originated by us, damage our banking facilities and offices and negatively impact our growth strategy. Such
weather events can disrupt operations, result in damage to properties and negatively affect the local economies in the
markets where they operate. We cannot predict whether or to what extent damage that may be caused by future
hurricanes or tornadoes will affect our operations or the economies in our current or future market areas, but such
weather events could negatively impact economic conditions in these regions and result in a decline in local loan
demand and loan originations, a decline in the value or destruction of properties securing our loans and an increase in
delinquencies, foreclosures or loan losses. Our business or results of operations may be adversely affected by these
and other negative effects of natural or man-made disasters.

We may be adversely affected by the soundness of other financial institutions.

Financial services institutions are interrelated as a result of trading, clearing, counterparty, or other relationships. We
have exposure to many different industries and counterparties and routinely execute transactions with counterparties
in the financial services industry, including commercial banks, brokers and dealers, investment banks, and other
institutional clients. Many of these transactions expose us to credit risk in the event of a default by a counterparty or
client. Any such losses could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Regulation of the financial services industry continues to undergo major changes, and future legislation could
increase our cost of doing business or harm our competitive position.

The Dodd-Frank Act brought about a significant overhaul of many aspects of the regulation of the financial services
industry, addressing, among other things, systemic risk, capital adequacy, deposit insurance assessments, consumer
financial protection, interchange fees, derivatives, lending limits, mortgage lending practices, registration of
investment advisors and changes among the bank regulatory agencies.
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1A (Continued)

Major changes in the law could materially impact the profitability of our business, the value of assets we hold or the
collateral available for our loans, require changes to business practices or force us to discontinue businesses and
expose us to additional costs, taxes, liabilities, enforcement actions and reputational risk. We cannot fully predict the
effect that compliance with changing laws or any implementing regulations will have on the Company’s or the Bank’s
businesses or our ability to pursue future business opportunities, our financial condition or results of operations. [See
“Part I - Item 1. Business - Supervision, Regulation and Other Factors” of this Report for further information.] We
cannot predict whether new legislation will be enacted and, if enacted, the effect that it, or any regulations, would
have on our business, financial condition, or results of operations.

New regulations could restrict our ability to originate and sell mortgage loans.

The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau has issued a rule designed to clarify for lenders how they can avoid
monetary damages under the Dodd-Frank Act, which would hold lenders accountable for ensuring a borrower’s ability
to repay a mortgage. Loans that meet this “qualified mortgage” definition will be presumed to have complied with the
new ability-to-repay standard. Under the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau’s rule, a “qualified mortgage” loan must
not contain certain specified features, including:

●Excessive upfront points and fees (those exceeding 3% of the total loan amount, less “bona fide discount points” forprime loans);

●Interest-only payments;

●Negative-amortization; and

●Terms longer than 30 years.

Also, to qualify as a “qualified mortgage,” a borrower’s total monthly debt-to-income ratio may not exceed 43%. Lenders
must also verify and document the income and financial resources relied upon to qualify the borrower for the loan and
underwrite the loan based on a fully amortizing payment schedule and maximum interest rate during the first five
years, taking into account all applicable taxes, insurance and assessments. The Consumer Financial Protection
Bureau’s rule on qualified mortgages could limit our ability or desire to make certain types of loans or loans to certain
borrowers, or could make it more expensive/and or time consuming to make these loans, which could limit our growth

Edgar Filing: COLONY BANKCORP INC - Form 10-K

66



or profitability.

Changes in laws and regulations and the cost of regulatory compliance with new laws and regulations may
adversely affect our operations and our income.

Bank regulatory agencies, such as the FDIC, govern the activities in which we may engage, primarily for the
protection of depositors, and not for the protection or benefit of potential investors. In addition, new laws and
regulations are likely to increase our costs of regulatory compliance and costs of doing business, and otherwise affect
our operations. New laws and regulations may significantly affect the markets in which we do business, the markets
for and value of our loans and investments, the fees we can charge, and our ongoing operations, costs and profitability.
For example, regulatory changes to our overdraft protection programs could decrease the amount of fees we receive
for these services. We cannot fully predict the effect that changes in law or regulation will have on the Company’s or
the Bank’s businesses or our ability to pursue future business opportunities, our financial condition or results of
operations.
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1A (Continued)

Our management team’s strategies for the enhancement of shareholder value may not succeed.

Our management team is taking and considering actions to enhance shareholder value, including reviewing personnel,
developing new products, issuing dividends and exploring acquisition opportunities. These actions may not enhance
shareholder value. For example, holders of our common stock are only entitled to receive such dividends as our Board
of Directors may declare out of funds legally available for such payments. We are not legally required to do so.
Further, the Federal Reserve could decide at any time that paying any dividends on our common stock could be an
unsafe or unsound banking practice. The reduction or elimination of dividends paid on our common stock could
adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

Our stock price may be volatile due to limited trading volume.

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market. However, the average daily trading volume in
the Company’s common stock has been relatively small, averaging approximately 21 total trades per day during 2016.
As a result, trades involving a relatively small number of shares may have a significant effect on the market price of
the common stock, and it may be difficult for investors to acquire or dispose of large blocks of stock without
significantly affecting the market price.

The costs and effects of litigation, investigations or similar matters involving us or other financial institutions
or counterparties, or adverse facts and developments related thereto, could materially affect our business,
operating results and financial condition.

We may be involved from time to time in a variety of litigation, investigations, inquiries or similar matters arising out
of our business, including those described in [“Part I - Item 3. Legal Proceedings” and "Part II - Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data" of this Report.] We cannot predict the outcome of these or any other legal
matters. We establish reserves for legal claims when payments associated with the claims become probable and the
losses can be reasonably estimated. We may still incur legal costs for a matter even if we have not established a
reserve. In addition, the actual cost of resolving a legal claim may be substantially higher than any amounts reserved
for that matter. In addition, in the future, we may need to record additional litigation reserves with respect to these
matters. Further, regardless of how these matters proceed, it could divert our management's attention and other
resources away from our business. Our insurance may not cover all claims that may be asserted against it and
indemnification rights to which we are entitled may not be honored, and any claims asserted against us, regardless of
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merit or eventual outcome, may harm our reputation. Should the ultimate judgments or settlements in any litigation or
investigation significantly exceed our insurance coverage, they could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. In addition, premiums for insurance covering the financial and banking
sectors are rising. We may not be able to obtain appropriate types or levels of insurance in the future, nor may we be
able to obtain adequate replacement policies with acceptable terms or at historic rates, if at all.

Our stock price is subject to fluctuations, and the value of your investment may decline.

The trading price of our common stock is subject to wide fluctuations. The stock market in general, and the market for
the stocks of commercial banks and other financial services companies in particular, has experienced significant price
and volume fluctuations that sometimes have been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of those
companies. These broad market and industry factors may seriously harm the market price of our common stock,
regardless of our operating performance, and the value of your investment may decline.
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Part I (Continued)

Item 1B

Unresolved Staff Comments

Not Applicable.

Item 2

Properties

The principal properties of the Registrant consist of the properties of the Bank. The Bank owns all of the banking
offices occupied except one office in Valdosta and one office in Douglas which are leased. In addition, the Company
owns the corporate offices located in Fitzgerald, Georgia.

Item 3

Legal Proceedings

The Company and its subsidiary may become parties to various legal proceedings arising from the normal course of
business. As of December 31, 2016, there are no material pending legal proceedings to which Colony or its subsidiary
are a party or of which any of its property is the subject.

Item 4

Mine Safety Disclosures
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Not Applicable.
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Part II

Item 5

Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchase of Equity
Securities

Effective April 2, 1998, Colony Bankcorp, Inc. common stock is quoted on the NASDAQ Global Market under the
symbol “CBAN.” Prior to this date, there was no public market for the common stock of the registrant.

The following table sets forth the high, low and close sale prices per share of the common stock as reported on the
NASDAQ Global Market, and the dividends declared per share for the periods indicated.

Year Ended December 31, 2016 High Low Close

Fourth Quarter 13.30 9.45 13.20
Third Quarter 10.06 8.80 9.89
Second Quarter 10.00 9.20 9.51
First Quarter 10.04 8.11 9.19

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Fourth Quarter 9.99 8.75 9.53
Third Quarter 9.20 8.61 8.90
Second Quarter 9.35 8.06 8.56
First Quarter 8.38 7.31 8.10

No cash dividends were paid on its common stock in 2015 or 2016. The Company’s board of directors suspended the
payment of dividends in the third quarter of 2009. For a description of the restrictions and limitations on the
Company’s ability to pay dividends, please see “Dividends” on Page 13.

As of February 15, 2017, the Company had approximately 1,906 common stockholders of record.
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Issuer Purchase of Equity Securities

The Company purchased no shares of the Company’s common stock during the quarter ended December 31, 2016.
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Part II (Continued)

Item 6

Selected Financial Data

Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
(Dollars in Thousands, except per share data)

Selected Balance Sheet Data
Total Assets $1,210,442 $1,174,149 $1,146,898 $1,148,551 $1,139,397
Total Loans, Net of Unearned Interest and Fees 753,922 758,279 745,733 750,857 746,816
Total Deposits 1,044,357 1,011,554 979,303 987,529 979,685
Investment Securities 323,658 296,149 274,624 263,295 268,342
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 3,010 2,731 2,831 3,164 3,364
Stockholders’ Equity 93,388 95,457 99,027 89,954 95,759
Selected Income Statement Data
Interest Income 44,589 44,275 44,762 45,186 47,289
Interest Expense 6,483 6,569 6,799 7,497 11,016

Net Interest Income 38,106 37,706 37,963 37,689 36,273
Provision for Loan Losses 1,062 866 1,308 4,485 6,785
Other Income 9,553 9,045 9,125 8,377 9,733
Other Expense 34,073 33,724 34,980 34,617 35,379

Income Before Tax 12,524 12,161 10,800 6,964 3,842
Income Tax Expense 3,851 3,788 3,268 2,335 1,201

Net Income 8,673 8,373 7,532 4,629 2,641
Preferred Stock Dividends 1,493 2,375 2,689 1,509 1,435

Net Income Available to Common Stockholders $7,180 $5,998 $4,843 $3,120 $1,206

Weighted Average
Common Shares Outstanding, Basic 8,439 8,439 8,439 8,439 8,439
Common Shares Outstanding, Diluted 8,513 8,458 8,439 8,439 8,439
Shares Outstanding 8,439 8,439 8,439 8,439 8,439
Intangible Assets $81 $116 $152 $188 $224
Dividends Declared - - - - -
Average Assets 1,163,863 1,146,984 1,128,052 1,118,071 1,139,814
Average Stockholders’ Equity 100,114 101,710 94,751 93,358 96,541
Net Charge-Offs 743 1,064 4,312 5,416 9,698
Reserve for Loan Losses 8,923 8,604 8,802 11,806 12,737
OREO 6,439 8,839 10,402 15,502 15,941
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Nonperforming Loans 12,350 14,416 18,341 24,118 29,855
Nonperforming Assets 18,789 23,255 28,743 39,620 46,162
Average Interest-Earning Assets 1,090,967 1,074,556 1,057,608 1,048,185 1,066,333
Noninterest-Bearing Deposits 159,059 133,886 128,340 115,261 123,967
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Part II (Continued)

Item 6 (Continued)

Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
(Dollars in Thousands, except per share data)

Per Share Data:
Net Income Per Common Share (Diluted) $0.84 $0.71 $0.57 $0.37 $0.14
Common Book Value Per Share 9.96 9.18 8.42 7.34 8.05
Tangible Common Book Value Per Share 9.95 9.16 8.40 7.32 8.02
Dividends Per Common Share 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Profitability Ratios:
Net Income to Average Assets 0.62 % 0.52 % 0.43 % 0.28 % 0.11 %
Net Income to Average Stockholders’ Equity 7.17 5.90 5.11 3.34 1.25
Net Interest Margin 3.51 3.52 3.60 3.61 3.41
Loan Quality Ratios:
Net Charge-Offs to Total Loans 0.10 0.14 0.58 0.72 1.30
Reserve for Loan Losses to Total Loans and OREO 1.17 1.12 1.16 1.54 1.67
Nonperforming Assets to Total Loans and OREO 2.47 3.03 3.80 5.17 6.05
Reserve for Loan Losses to Nonperforming Loans 72.25 59.68 47.99 48.95 42.66
Reserve for Loan Losses to Total Nonperforming Assets 47.49 37.00 30.62 29.80 27.59
Liquidity Ratios:
Loans to Total Deposits (1) 72.19 74.96 76.15 76.03 76.23
Loans to Average Interest-Earning Assets (1) 69.11 70.57 70.51 71.63 70.04
Noninterest-Bearing Deposits to Total Deposits 15.23 13.24 13.11 11.67 12.65
Capital Adequacy Ratios:
Common Stockholders’ Equity to Total Assets 6.94 6.60 6.20 5.39 5.96
Total Stockholders’ Equity to Total Assets 7.72 8.13 8.63 7.83 8.40
Dividend Payout Ratio 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(1)     Total loans, net of unearned interest and fees.
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Part II (Continued)

Item 7

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements and Factors that Could Affect Future Results

Certain statements contained in this Annual Report that are not statements of historical fact constitute forward-looking
statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the Act), notwithstanding that
such statements are not specifically identified. In addition, certain statements may be contained in the Company’s
future filings with the SEC, in press releases, and in oral and written statements made by or with the approval of the
Company that are not statements of historical fact and constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of
the Act. Examples of forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to: (i) projections of revenues, income or
loss, earnings or loss per share, the payment or nonpayment of dividends, capital structure and other financial items;
(ii) statements of plans and objectives of Colony Bankcorp, Inc. or its management or Board of Directors, including
those relating to products or services; (iii) statements of future economic performance; and (iv) statements of
assumptions underlying such statements. Words such as “believes,” “anticipates,” “expects,” “intends,” “targeted” and similar
expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements but are not the exclusive means of identifying such
statements.

Forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ materially from
those in such statements. Factors that could cause actual results to differ from those discussed in the forward-looking
statements include, but are not limited to:

●Local and regional economic conditions and the impact they may have on the Company and its customers and theCompany’s assessment of that impact;

●Changes in estimates of future reserve requirements based upon the periodic review thereof under relevant regulatoryand accounting requirements;

●The effects of and changes in trade, monetary and fiscal policies and laws, including interest rate policies of theFederal Reserve Board;

●Inflation, interest rate, market and monetary fluctuations;
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●Political instability;

●Acts of war or terrorism;

●The timely development and acceptance of new products and services and perceived overall value of these productsand services by users;

●Changes in consumer spending, borrowings and savings habits;

●Technological changes;

●Acquisitions and integration of acquired businesses;

●The ability to increase market share and control expenses;
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Part II (Continued)

Item 7 (Continued)

●The effect of changes in laws and regulations (including laws and regulations concerning taxes, banking, securitiesand insurance) with which the Company and its subsidiaries must comply;

●The effect of changes in accounting policies and practices, as may be adopted by the regulatory agencies, as well asthe Financial Accounting Standards Board and other accounting standard setters;

●Changes in the Company’s organization, compensation and benefit plans;

●The costs and effects of litigation and of unexpected or adverse outcomes in such litigation;

●Greater than expected costs or difficulties related to the integration of new lines of business; and

●The Company’s success at managing the risks involved in the foregoing items.

Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which such statements are made. The Company undertakes
no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which such
statement is made, or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

Future Outlook

During the recent financial crisis, the financial industry experienced tremendous adversities as a result of the collapse
of the real estate markets across the country. Colony, like most banking companies, has been affected by these
economic challenges that started with a rapid stall of real estate sales and developments throughout the county. While
much has been accomplished in addressing problem assets the past several years, there is still work to be done in
bringing our problem assets to an acceptable level. A focus in 2017 will be directed toward further reduction of
problem assets.

As we look forward to 2017 we are committed to improving earnings, reducing problem assets and redeeming TARP
preferred stock. We plan to seek approval from the Federal Reserve and the Department of Finance to completely
eliminate the Preferred Stock during 2017. Given the improved condition of the company we are also considering
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product and market expansion. In 2016 we opened new offices in Tifton and Statesboro, while closing four offices in
smaller rural markets. In January 2017, the Company opened its third office in Savannah.

While the Company has improved earnings, reduced problem assets and maintained strong capital levels, we have
reinstated dividend payments beginning first quarter 2017. The Company’s board of directors suspended the payment
of dividends in the third quarter of 2009.

We continue to explore opportunities to improve core non-interest income. Revenue enhancement initiatives to
accomplish this include new product lines and services. The Company will also invest in new technology with
implementation of a new loan platform which will offer much efficiency with our “back-office” operations.

In addition, we continue to make efforts to attract and retain top talent to improve business operations. To that end, the
Company entered into Retention Agreements with members of management in the first quarter of 2015. The Company
expects that these agreements will facilitate the retention of key individuals responsible for maintaining current
operations and spearheading future product and market expansion.
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Part II (Continued)

Item 7 (Continued)

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Our accounting and reporting policies conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United
States and prevailing practices in the banking industry. However, certain non-GAAP measures are used by
management to supplement the evaluation of our performance. These include the fully-taxable equivalent measures:
tax-equivalent net interest income, tax-equivalent net interest margin, and tax-equivalent net interest spread, which
include the effects of taxable-equivalent adjustments using a federal income tax rate of 34% to increase tax-exempt
interest income to a tax-equivalent basis.  Tax-equivalent adjustments are reported in Notes 1 and 2 to the Average
Balances with Average Yields and Rates table under Rate/Volume Analysis. Tangible book value per common share
is also a non-GAAP measure used in the selected Financial Data Section.

Tax-equivalent net interest income, net interest margin and net interest spread.  Net interest income on a
tax-equivalent basis is a non-GAAP measure that adjusts for the tax-favored status of net interest income from loans
and investments. We believe this measure to be the preferred industry measurement of net interest income and it
enhances comparability of net interest income arising from taxable and tax-exempt sources. The most directly
comparable financial measure calculated in accordance with GAAP is our net interest income. Net interest margin on
a tax-equivalent basis is net interest income on a tax-equivalent basis divided by average interest-earning assets on a
tax-equivalent basis. The most directly comparable financial measure calculated in accordance with GAAP is our net
interest margin. Net interest spread on a tax-equivalent basis is the difference in the average yield on average
interest-earning assets on a tax equivalent basis and the average rate paid on average interest-bearing liabilities. The
most directly comparable financial measure calculated in accordance with GAAP is our net interest spread.

These non-GAAP financial measures should not be considered alternatives to GAAP-basis financial statements, and
other bank holding companies may define or calculate these non-GAAP measures or similar measures differently.

A reconciliation of these performance measures to GAAP performance measures is included in the tables below.

Non-GAAP Performance Measures Reconciliation

Years Ended December 31,
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2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
(Dollars in Thousands, except per share data)

Interest Income Reconciliation
Interest Income – Taxable Equivalent $44,762 $44,407 $44,879 $45,356 $47,433
Tax Equivalent Adjustment 173 132 117 170 144
Interest Income (GAAP) $44,589 $44,275 $44,762 $45,186 $47,289

Net Interest Income Reconciliation
Net Interest Income – Taxable Equivalent $38,279 $37,838 $38,080 $37,859 $36,417
Tax Equivalent Adjustment 173 132 117 170 144
Net Interest Income (GAAP) $38,106 $37,706 $37,963 $37,689 $36,273

Net Interest Margin Reconciliation
Net Interest Margin – Taxable Equivalent 3.51 % 3.52 % 3.60 % 3.61 % 3.42 %
Tax Equivalent Adjustment .02 .01 .01 .02 .01
Net Interest Margin (GAAP) 3.49 % 3.51 % 3.59 % 3.59 % 3.41 %
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Part II (Continued)

Item 7 (Continued)

Non-GAAP Performance Measures Reconciliation (Continued)

Years Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
(Dollars in Thousands, except per share
data)

Interest Rate Spread Reconciliation
Interest Rate Spread – Taxable Equivalent 3.40% 3.41% 3.49% 3.50% 3.27%
Tax Equivalent Adjustment .02 .01 .01 .02 .01
Interest Rate Spread (GAAP) 3.38% 3.40% 3.48% 3.48% 3.26%

Selected Financial Data
Tangible Book Value Per Common Share $9.95 $9.16 $8.40 $7.32 $8.02
Effect of Other Intangible Assets 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.03
Book Value Per Common Share (GAAP) $9.96 $9.18 $8.42 $7.34 $8.05

The Company

Colony Bankcorp, Inc. (“Colony” or the “Company”) is a bank holding company headquartered in Fitzgerald, Georgia that
provides, through its wholly-owned subsidiary Colony Bank (collectively referred to as the Company), a broad array
of products and services throughout central, south and coastal Georgia markets. The Company offers commercial,
consumer and mortgage banking services.

Overview

The following discussion and analysis presents the more significant factors affecting the Company’s financial
condition as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and results of operations for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2016. This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Company’s
consolidated financial statements, notes thereto and other financial information appearing elsewhere in this report.
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Taxable-equivalent adjustments are the result of increasing income from tax-free loans and investments by an amount
equal to the taxes that would be paid if the income were fully taxable based on a 34 percent federal tax rate, thus
making tax-exempt yields comparable to taxable asset yields.

Dollar amounts in tables are stated in thousands, except for per share amounts.
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Part II (Continued)

Item 7 (Continued)

Results of Operations

The Company’s results of operations are determined by its ability to effectively manage interest income and expense,
to minimize loan and investment losses, to generate noninterest income and to control noninterest expense. Since
market forces and economic conditions beyond the control of the Company determine interest rates, the ability to
generate net interest income is dependent upon the Company’s ability to obtain an adequate spread between the rate
earned on interest-earning assets and the rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities. Thus, the key performance for net
interest income is the interest margin or net yield, which is taxable-equivalent net interest income divided by average
interest-earning assets. Net income available to common shareholders totaled $7.18 million, or $0.84 per diluted
common share in 2016, compared to $6.00 million, or $0.71 per diluted common share in 2015 and compared to $4.84
million, or $0.57 per diluted common share in 2014.

Selected income statement data, returns on average assets and average equity and dividends per share for the
comparable periods were as follows:

2016 2015
$

Variance

%

Variance
2015 2014

$

Variance

%

Variance

Taxable-equivalent
net interest income $38,279 $37,838 $ 441 1.17 % $37,838 $38,080 $ (242 ) (0.64 )%

Taxable-equivalent
adjustment 173 132 41 31.06 132 117 15 12.82

Net interest income 38,106 37,706 400 1.06 37,706 37,963 (257 ) (0.68 )
Provision for loan
losses 1,062 866 196 22.63 866 1,308 (442 ) (33.79 )

Noninterest income 9,553 9,045 508 5.62 9,045 9,125 (80 ) (0.88 )
Noninterest expense 34,073 33,724 349 1.03 33,724 34,980 (1,256 ) (3.59 )

Income before
income taxes $12,524 $12,161 $ 363 2.98 % $12,161 $10,800 $1,361 12.60 %

Income Taxes 3,851 3,788 63 1.66 3,788 3,268 520 15.91

Net income $8,673 $8,373 $ 300 3.58 % $8,373 $7,532 $841 11.17 %
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Preferred stock
dividends $1,493 $2,375 $ (882 ) (37.14 )% $2,375 $2,689 $ (314 ) (11.68 )%

Net income available
to common
shareholders

$7,180 $5,998 $ 1,182 19.71 % $5,998 $4,843 $1,155 23.85 %

Net income available
to common
shareholders:
Basic $0.85 $0.71 $ 0.14 19.72 % $0.71 $0.57 $0.14 24.56 %
Diluted $0.84 $0.71 $ 0.13 18.31 % $0.71 $0.57 $0.14 24.56 %
Return on average
assets (1) 0.62 % 0.52 % 0.10 % 19.23 % 0.52 % 0.43 % 0.09 % 20.93 %

Return on average
common equity (1) 7.17 % 5.90 % 1.27 % 21.53 % 5.90 % 5.11 % 0.79 % 15.46 %

(1) Computed using net income available to common shareholders.
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Part II (Continued)

Item 7 (Continued)

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the difference between interest income on earning assets, such as loans and securities, and
interest expense on liabilities, such as deposits and borrowings, which are used to fund those assets. Net interest
income is the Company’s largest source of revenue, representing 79.96 percent of total revenue during 2016, 80.65
percent of total revenue during 2015 and 80.62 percent during 2014.

Net interest margin is the taxable-equivalent net interest income as a percentage of average interest-earning assets for
the period. The level of interest rates and the volume and mix of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities
impact net interest income and net interest margin.

The Company’s loan portfolio is significantly affected by changes in the prime interest rate. The prime interest rate,
which is the rate offered on loans to borrowers with strong credit, is currently 3.75 percent. The Federal Reserve
Board sets general market rates of interest, including the deposit and loan rates offered by many financial institutions.
For the first time in several years, the prime interest rate increased by 25 basis points in the fourth quarter of 2015,
followed by a similar 25-point increase in the fourth quarter of 2016. We anticipate that the prime interest rate will
again rise in 2017. Given that the federal funds rate moves in accordance with the movement of the prime interest rate,
we anticipate that the federal funds rate will also increase from its current 0.75 percent.
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Part II (Continued)

Item 7 (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in taxable-equivalent net interest income and identifies the changes due to
differences in the average volume of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and the changes due to
changes in the average interest rate on those assets and liabilities. The changes in net interest income due to changes in
both average volume and average interest rate have been allocated to the average volume change or the average
interest rate change in proportion to the absolute amounts of the change in each. The Company’s consolidated average
balance sheets along with an analysis of taxable-equivalent net interest earnings are presented in the Rate/Volume
Analysis. 

Rate/Volume Analysis

The rate/volume analysis presented hereafter illustrates the change from year to year for each component of the
taxable equivalent net interest income separated into the amount generated through volume changes and the amount
generated by changes in the yields/rates.

Changes From Changes From
2015 to 2016 (a) 2014 to 2015 (a)
VolumeRate Total VolumeRate Total

Interest Income
Loans, Net-Taxable $221 $(951) $(730 ) $831 $(831 ) $-

Investment Securities
Taxable 381 669 1,050 (89 ) (396 ) (485)
Tax-Exempt 12 (15 ) (3 ) (12 ) (3 ) (15 )
Total Investment Securities 393 654 1,047 (101) (399 ) (500)

Interest-Bearing Deposits in Other Banks (18 ) 62 44 35 3 38
Federal Funds Sold (15 ) - (15 ) (16 ) (1 ) (17 )
Other Interest - Earning Assets 4 5 9 (6 ) 13 7
Total Interest Income 585 (230) 355 743 (1,215) (472)

Interest Expense
Interest-Bearing Demand and Savings Deposits 137 62 199 126 (29 ) 97
Time Deposits (271) (4 ) (275 ) (240) (113 ) (353)
Total Interest Expense On Deposits (134) 58 (76 ) (114) (142 ) (256)
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Other Interest-Bearing Liabilities
Subordinated Debentures - 98 98 - (15 ) (15 )
Other Debt 74 (183) (109 ) - 41 41
Federal Funds Purchased - 1 1 - - -
Total Interest Expense (60 ) (26 ) (86 ) (114) (116 ) (230)
Net Interest Income (Loss) $645 $(204) $441 $857 $(1,099) $(242)

(a)

Changes in net interest income for the periods, based on either changes in average balances or changes in average
rates for interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, are shown on this table. During each year there are
numerous and simultaneous balance and rate changes; therefore, it is not possible to precisely allocate the changes
between balances and rates. For the purpose of this table, changes that are not exclusively due to balance changes
or rate changes have been attributed to rates.
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Part II (Continued)

Item 7 (Continued)

The Company maintains about 21.2 percent of its loan portfolio in adjustable rate loans that reprice with prime rate
changes, while the bulk of its other loans mature within 3 years. The liabilities to fund assets are primarily in
non-maturing core deposits and short term certificates of deposit that mature within one year. The Federal Reserve
rates have remained flat since 2008 until the 25 basis point increase in the fourth quarter of 2015 followed by the 25
basis point increase in the fourth quarter of 2016. We have seen the net interest margin change to 3.51 percent for
2016, compared to 3.52 percent for 2015 and 3.60 percent for 2014. We have seen our net interest margin reach a low
of 3.39 percent in fourth quarter 2016 to a high of 3.59 percent in second quarter 2016.

Taxable-equivalent net interest income for 2016 increased by $441 thousand, or 1.17 percent, compared to 2015 while
taxable-equivalent net interest income for 2015 decreased by $242 thousand, or 0.64 percent compared to 2014. The
average volume of interest-earning assets during 2016 increased $16.41 million compared to 2015 while over the
same period the net interest margin dropped to 3.51 percent from 3.52 percent. The average volume of interest-earning
assets during 2015 increased $16.95 million compared to 2014 while over the same period the net interest margin
dropped to 3.52 percent from 3.60 percent. The change in the net interest margin in 2016 and 2015 was primarily
driven by reduction in the cost of funds and a higher level of low yielding assets. The increase in average
interest-earning assets in 2016 was in loans, investments and other interest-earning assets. The increase in average
interest-earning assets in 2015 was in loans and interest-bearing deposits.

The average volume of loans increased $4.20 million in 2016 compared to 2015, and increased $15.47 million in 2015
compared to 2014. The average yield on loans decreased 13 basis points in 2016 compared to 2015 and decreased 11
basis points in 2015 compared to 2014. The average volume of deposits increased $17.35 million in 2016 compared to
2015. The average volume of deposits increased $17.29 million in 2015 compared to 2014. Demand deposits made up
$11.80 million of the increase in average deposits in 2016 compared to $10.09 million of the increase in average
deposits in 2015.

Accordingly, the ratio of average interest-bearing deposits to total average deposits was 85.9 percent in 2016, 86.8
percent in 2015 and 87.6 percent in 2014. This deposit mix, combined with a general decrease in interest rates, had the
effect of (i) decreasing the average cost of total deposits by 2 basis points in 2016 compared to 2015 and decreasing
the average cost of total deposits by 3 basis points in 2015 compared to 2014, and (ii) mitigating a portion of the
impact of decreasing yields on interest-earning assets on the Company’s net interest income.

The Company’s net interest spread, which represents the difference between the average rate earned on interest-earning
assets and the average rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities, was 3.40 percent in 2016 compared to 3.41 percent in
2015 and 3.49 percent in 2014. The net interest spread, as well as the net interest margin, will be impacted by future
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changes in short-term and long-term interest rate levels, as well as the impact from the competitive environment. A
discussion of the effects of changing interest rates on net interest income is set forth in Market Risk and Interest Rate
Sensitivity included elsewhere in this report.
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Item 7 (Continued)

Rate/Volume Analysis (Continued)

AVERAGE BALANCE SHEETS

2016 2015 2014
Average Income/ Yields/ Average Income/ Yields/ Average Income/ Yields/
Balances Expense Rates Balances Expense Rates Balances Expense Rates

Assets
Interest-Earning
Assets
Loans, Net of
Unearned Income
(1)

$761,149 $39,084 5.13% $756,953 $39,814 5.26% $741,484 $39,814 5.37%

Investment
Securities
Taxable 301,357 5,328 1.77 276,807 4,278 1.55 282,056 4,763 1.69
Tax-Exempt (2) 2,440 95 3.89 2,171 98 4.51 2,418 113 4.67
Total Investment
Securities 303,797 5,423 1.79 278,978 4,376 1.57 284,474 4,876 1.71

Interest-Bearing
Deposits 23,167 124 0.54 29,815 80 0.27 16,193 42 0.26

Federal Funds Sold - - - 6,056 15 0.25 12,551 32 0.25
Other
Interest-Earning
Assets

2,854 131 4.59 2,754 122 4.43 2,906 115 3.96

Total
Interest-Earning
Assets

1,090,967 44,762 4.10 1,074,556 44,407 4.13 1,057,608 44,879 4.24

Noninterest-Earning
Assets
Cash 19,208 19,049 9,698
Allowance for Loan
Losses (9,372 ) (8,587 ) (10,841 )

Other Assets 63,060 61,966 71,587
Total
Noninterest-Earning
Assets

72,896 72,428 70,444

Total Assets $1,163,863 $1,146,984 $1,128,052

Edgar Filing: COLONY BANKCORP INC - Form 10-K

92



Liabilities and
Stockholders' Equity
Interest-Bearing
Liabilities
Interest-Bearing
Demand and Savings $469,740 $1,694 0.36% $430,731 $1,495 0.35% $394,615 $1,398 0.35%

Other Time 383,628 3,087 0.80 417,080 3,362 0.81 445,993 3,715 0.83
Total
Interest-Bearing
Deposits

853,368 4,781 0.56 847,811 4,857 0.57 840,608 5,113 0.61

Other
Interest-Bearing
Liabilities
Other Borrowed
Money 42,470 1,100 2.59 40,000 1,209 3.02 40,000 1,168 2.92

Subordinated
Debentures 24,229 601 2.48 24,229 503 2.08 24,229 518 2.14

Federal Funds
Purchased and
Repurchase
Agreements

35 1 2.86 3 - - 2 - -

Total Other
Interest-Bearing
Liabilities

66,734 1,702 2.55 64,232 1,712 2.67 64,231 1,686 2.62

Total
Interest-Bearing
Liabilities

920,102 6,483 0.70 912,043 6,569 0.72 904,839 6,799 0.75

Noninterest-Bearing
Liabilities and
Stockholders' Equity
Demand Deposits 140,338 128,541 118,452
Other Liabilities 3,309 4,690 10,010
Stockholders' Equity 100,114 101,710 94,751
Total
Noninterest-Bearing
Liabilities and
Stockholders' Equity

243,761 234,941 223,213

Total Liabilities and
Stockholders' Equity $1,163,863 $1,146,984 $1,128,052

Interest Rate Spread 3.40% 3.41% 3.49%
Net Interest Income $38,279 $37,838 $38,080
Net Interest Margin 3.51% 3.52% 3.60%

(1)
The average balance of loans includes the average balance of nonaccrual loans. Income on such loans is recognized
and recorded on the cash basis. Taxable equivalent adjustments totaling $141, $99 and $79 for 2016, 2015 and
2014, respectively, are included in interest on loans. The adjustments are based on a federal tax rate of 34 percent.

(2)Taxable-equivalent adjustments totaling $32, $33 and $38 for 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively, are included in
tax-exempt interest on investment securities. The adjustments are based on a federal tax rate of 34 percent with
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appropriate reductions for the effect of disallowed interest expense incurred in carrying tax-exempt obligations.
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Item 7 (Continued)

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses is determined by management as the amount to be added to the allowance for loan losses
after net charge-offs have been deducted to bring the allowance to a level which, in management’s best estimate, is
necessary to absorb probable losses within the existing loan portfolio. The provision for loan losses totaled $1.06
million in 2016 compared to $866 thousand in 2015 and $1.31 million in 2014. See the section captioned “Allowance
for Loan Losses” elsewhere in this discussion for further analysis of the provision for loan losses.

Noninterest Income

The components of noninterest income were as follows:

$ % $ %
2016 2015 Variance Variance 2015 2014 Variance Variance

Service Charges on Deposit
Accounts $4,307 $4,269 $ 38 0.89 % $4,269 $4,649 $ (380 ) (8.17 )%

Other Charges, Commissions and
Fees 2,803 2,627 176 6.70 2,627 2,388 239 10.01

Mortgage Fee Income 682 527 155 29.41 527 420 107 25.48
Securities Gains (Losses) 385 (11 ) 396 3,600.00 (11 ) 24 (35 ) (145.83 )
Other 1,377 1,633 (256 ) (15.68 ) 1,633 1,644 (11 ) (0.67 )

Total $9,554 $9,045 $ 509 5.63 % $9,045 $9,125 $ (80 ) (0.88 )%

Other Charges, Commissions and Fees. Significant amounts impacting the comparable periods was primarily
attributed to ATM and debit card interchange fees which increased $184 thousand in 2016 compared to 2015 and
$251 thousand in 2015 compared to 2014.

Mortgage Fee Income. The increase in mortgage fee income in 2016 compared to the same period in 2015 is due to an
increase in the volume of mortgage loans.
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Securities Gains (Losses). The increase in 2016 is attributable to the gain on sale of securities compared to 2015 with
a loss on sale of securities.

Other. Significant amounts impacting the comparable periods was primarily attributed to having income from the sale
of a tax credit of $66 thousand and life insurance benefits of $137 that did not occur in 2016. The Bank did not have
any significant changes for 2015 compared to 2014.
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Item 7 (Continued)

Noninterest Expense

The components of noninterest expense were as follows:

2016 2015
$

Variance

%

Variance
2015 2014

$

Variance

%

Variance

Salaries and Employee
Benefits $18,483 $17,590 $ 893 5.08 % $17,590 $17,508 $ 82 0.47 %

Occupancy and Equipment 3,970 3,989 (19 ) (0.48 ) 3,989 4,063 (74 ) (1.82 )
Directors' Fees 349 358 (9 ) (2.51 ) 358 392 (34 ) (8.67 )
Legal and Professional Fees 792 738 54 7.32 738 786 (48 ) (6.11 )
Foreclosed Property 1,143 1,683 (540 ) (32.09 ) 1,683 2,701 (1,018 ) (37.69 )
FDIC Assessment 604 899 (295 ) (32.81 ) 899 966 (67 ) (6.94 )
Advertising 610 625 (15 ) (2.40 ) 625 652 (27 ) (4.14 )
Software 1,112 993 119 11.98 993 925 68 7.35
Telephone 737 710 27 3.80 710 736 (26 ) (3.53 )
ATM/Card Processing 1,136 1,061 75 7.07 1,061 906 155 17.11
Other 5,137 5,078 59 1.16 5,078 5,345 (267 ) (5.00 )

Total $34,073 $33,724 $ 349 1.03 % $33,724 $34,980 $ (1,256 ) (3.59 )%

Salaries and Employee Benefits. The increase in salary and employee benefits for 2016 is due to merit pay increases.
Salary and employee benefits remained flat in 2015 compared to 2014.

Foreclosed Property. The decrease in foreclosed property and repossession expense for 2016 and 2015 is primarily
attributable to the decrease in the volume of OREO.
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Part II (Continued)

Item 7 (Continued)

Sources and Uses of Funds

The following table illustrates, during the years presented, the mix of the Company’s funding sources and the assets in
which those funds are invested as a percentage of the Company’s average total assets for the period indicated. Average
assets totaled $1.16 billion in 2016 compared to $1.15 billion in 2015 and $1.13 billion in 2014.

2016 2015 2014
Sources of Funds:
Deposits:
Noninterest-Bearing $140,338 12.1 % $128,541 11.2 % $118,452 10.5 %
Interest-Bearing 853,368 73.3 % 847,811 73.9 % 840,608 74.5 %
Federal Funds Purchased and Repurchase
Agreements 35 - % 3 - % 2 - %

Subordinated Debentures and Other Borrowed
Money 66,699 5.7 % 64,229 5.6 % 64,229 5.7 %

Other Noninterest-Bearing Liabilities 3,309 0.3 % 4,690 0.4 % 10,010 0.9 %
Equity Capital 100,114 8.6 % 101,710 8.9 % 94,751 8.4 %

Total $1,163,863 100.0% $1,146,984 100.0% $1,128,052 100.0%

Uses of Funds:
Loans (Net of Allowance) $751,777 64.6 % $748,366 65.3 % $730,643 64.8 %
Investment Securities 303,797 26.1 % 278,978 24.3 % 284,474 25.2 %
Federal Funds Sold - - % 6,056 0.5 % 12,551 1.1 %
Interest-Bearing Deposits 23,167 2.0 % 29,815 2.6 % 16,193 1.4 %
Other Interest-Earning Assets 2,854 0.2 % 2,754 0.2 % 2,906 0.3 %
Other Noninterest-Earning Assets 82,268 7.1 % 81,015 7.1 % 81,285 7.2 %

Total $1,163,863 100.0% $1,146,984 100.0% $1,128,052 100.0%

Deposits continue to be the Company’s primary source of funding. Over the comparable periods, the relative mix of
deposits continues to be high in interest-bearing deposits. Interest-bearing deposits totaled 85.9 percent of total
average deposits in 2016 compared to 86.8 percent in 2015 and 87.6 percent in 2014.
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The Company primarily invests funds in loans and securities. Loans continue to be the largest component of the
Company’s mix of invested assets. Loan demand decreased in 2016 as total loans were $754.3 million at December 31,
2016, down 0.57 percent, compared to loans of $758.6 million at December 31, 2015, which went up 1.68 percent,
compared to loans of $746.1 million at December 31, 2014. See additional discussion regarding the Company’s loan
portfolio in the section captioned “Loans” on the following page. The majority of funds provided by deposits have been
invested in loans and securities.
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Item 7 (Continued)

Loans 

The following table presents the composition of the Company’s loan portfolio as of December 31 for the past five
years.

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Commercial and Agricultural
Commercial $47,025 $47,782 $50,960 $48,107 $55,684
Agricultural 17,080 19,193 16,689 10,666 6,211

Real Estate
Commercial Construction 30,358 40,107 51,259 52,739 53,808
Residential Construction 11,830 9,413 11,221 6,549 5,852
Commercial 349,090 346,262 332,231 341,783 334,386
Residential 195,580 197,002 203,753 206,258 203,845
Farmland 66,877 61,780 49,951 47,034 49,057

Consumer and Other
Consumer 19,695 20,605 22,820 25,676 29,778
Other 16,748 16,492 7,210 12,406 8,429

754,283 758,636 746,094 751,218 747,050

Unearned Interest and Fees (361 ) (357 ) (362 ) (360 ) (234 )
Allowances for Loan Losses (8,923 ) (8,604 ) (8,802 ) (11,806 ) (12,737 )

Loans $744,999 $749,675 $736,930 $739,052 $734,079

The following table presents total loans as of December 31, 2016 according to maturity distribution and/or repricing
opportunity on adjustable rate loans.

Maturity and Repricing Opportunity

One Year or Less $264,807
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After One Year through Three Years 287,713
After Three Years through Five Years 149,866
Over Five Years 51,897

$754,283

Overview. Loans totaled $754.3 million at December 31, 2016, down 0.57 percent from $758.6 million at December
31, 2015. The majority of the Company’s loan portfolio is comprised of the real estate loans. Commercial and
residential real estate which is primarily 1-4 family residential properties and nonfarm nonresidential properties, made
up 72.21 percent and 71.61 percent of total loans, real estate construction loans made up 5.59 percent and 6.53 percent
while commercial and agricultural loans made up 8.50 percent and 8.83 percent of total loans at December 31, 2016
and December 31, 2015, respectively.
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Item 7 (Continued)

Loan Origination/Risk Management. In accordance with the Company’s decentralized banking model, loan decisions
are made at the local bank level. The Company utilizes both an Executive Loan Committee and a Director Loan
Committee to assist lenders with the decision making and underwriting process of larger loan requests. Due to the
diverse economic markets served by the Company, evaluation and underwriting criterion may vary slightly by market.
Overall, loans are extended after a review of the borrower’s repayment ability, collateral adequacy, and overall credit
worthiness.

Commercial purpose, commercial real estate, and agricultural loans are underwritten similarly to how other loans are
underwritten throughout the Company. The properties securing the Company’s commercial real estate portfolio are
diverse in terms of type and geographic location. In addition, the Company restricts total loans to $10 million per
borrower, subject to exception and approval by the Director Loan Committee. This diversity helps reduce the
company’s exposure to adverse economic events that affect any single market or industry. Management monitors and
evaluates commercial real estate loans monthly based on collateral, geography, and risk grade criteria. The Company
also utilizes information provided by third-party agencies to provide additional insight and guidance about economic
conditions and trends affecting the markets it serves.

The Company extends loans to builders and developers that are secured by non-owner occupied properties. In such
cases, the Company reviews the overall economic conditions and trends for each market to determine the desirability
of loans to be extended for residential construction and development. Sources of repayment for these types of loans
may be pre-committed permanent loans from approved long-term lenders, sales of developed property or an interim
mini-perm loan commitment from the Company until permanent financing is obtained. In some cases, loans are
extended for residential loan construction for speculative purposes and are based on the perceived present and future
demand for housing in a particular market served by the Company. These loans are monitored by on-site inspections
and are considered to have higher risks than other real estate loans due to their ultimate repayment being sensitive to
interest rate changes, general economic conditions and trends, the demand for the properties, and the availability of
long-term financing.

The Company originates consumer loans at the bank level. Due to the diverse economic markets served by the
Company, underwriting criterion may vary slightly by market. The Company is committed to serving the borrowing
needs of all markets served and, in some cases, adjusts certain evaluation methods to meet the overall credit
demographics of each market. Consumer loans represent relatively small loan amounts that are spread across many
individual borrowers to help minimize risk. Additionally, consumer trends and outlook reports are reviewed by
management on a regular basis.
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The Company utilizes an independent third party company for loan review and validation of the credit risk program
on an ongoing quarterly basis. Results of these reviews are presented to management and the audit committee. The
loan review process complements and reinforces the risk identification and assessment decisions made by lenders and
credit personnel, as well as the Company’s policies and procedures.

Commercial and Agricultural. Commercial and agricultural loans at December 31, 2016 decreased 4.3 percent to
$64.1 million from December 31, 2015 at $67.0 million. The Company’s commercial and agricultural loans are a
diverse group of loans to small, medium and large businesses. The purpose of these loans varies from supporting
seasonal working capital needs to term financing of equipment. While some short-term loans may be made on an
unsecured basis, most are secured by the assets being financed with collateral margins that are consistent with the
Company’s loan policy guidelines.
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Item 7 (Continued)

Real Estate.  Commercial and residential construction loans decreased by $7.3 million, or 14.8 percent, at December
31, 2016 to $42.2 million from $49.52 million at December 31, 2015. This decrease is partially due to completion of
construction and the new loans transferring to the commercial real estate category.  Therefore, commercial real estate
increased $2.8 million or 0.8 percent at December 31, 2016 to $349.09 million from $346.26 million at December 31,
2015.

Other.  Other loans at December 31, 2016 increased 1.5 percent to $16.75 million from $16.49 million in December
31, 2015.

Industry Concentrations. As of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, there were no concentrations of loans
within any single industry in excess of 10 percent of total loans, as segregated by Standard Industrial Classification
code (“SIC code”). The SIC code is a federally designed standard industrial numbering system used by the Company to
categorize loans by the borrower’s type of business. The Company has established industry-specific guidelines with
respect to maximum loans permitted for each industry with which the Company does business.

Collateral Concentrations. Concentrations of credit risk can exist in relation to individual borrowers or groups of
borrowers, certain types of collateral, certain types of industries, or certain geographic regions. The Company has a
concentration in real estate loans as well as a geographic concentration that could pose an adverse credit risk,
particularly with the current economic downturn in the real estate market. At December 31, 2016, approximately 87
percent of the Company’s loan portfolio was concentrated in loans secured by real estate. A substantial portion of
borrowers’ ability to honor their contractual obligations is dependent upon the viability of the real estate economic
sector. In addition, a large portion of the Company’s foreclosed assets are also located in these same geographic
markets, making the recovery of the carrying amount of foreclosed assets susceptible to changes in market conditions.
Management continues to monitor these concentrations and has considered these concentrations in its allowance for
loan loss analysis.

Large Credit Relationships. The Company is currently in eighteen counties in central, south and coastal Georgia and
includes metropolitan markets in Dougherty, Lowndes, Houston, Chatham and Muscogee counties. As a result, the
Company originates and maintains large credit relationships with several commercial customers in the ordinary course
of business. The Company considers large credit relationships to be those with commitments equal to or in excess of
$5.0 million prior to any portion being sold. Large relationships also include loan participations purchased if the credit
relationship with the agent is equal to or in excess of $5.0 million. In addition to the Company’s normal policies and
procedures related to the origination of large credits, the Company’s Executive Loan Committee and Director Loan
Committee must approve all new and renewed credit facilities which are part of large credit relationships. The
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following table provides additional information on the Company’s large credit relationships outstanding at December
31, 2016 and December 31, 2015.

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Period End Balances Period End Balances

Number
of

Number
of

RelationshipsCommittedOutstanding RelationshipsCommittedOutstanding

Large Credit Relationships: $5 million to $9.9 million 14 $96,807 $ 86,712 16 $108,432 $ 99,126
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Item 7 (Continued)

Maturities and Sensitivities of Loans to Changes in Interest Rates. The following table presents the maturity
distribution of the Company’s loans at December 31, 2016. The table also presents the portion of loans that have fixed
interest rates or variable interest rates that fluctuate over the life of the loans in accordance with changes in an interest
rate index such as the prime rate.

Due in
One

Year or
Less

After
One,

but
Within

Three
Years

After
Three,

but
Within

Five
Years

After
Five

Years

Total

Loans with fixed interest rates $181,178 $263,748 $98,267 $51,151 $594,344
Loans with floating interest rates 83,629 23,965 51,599 746 159,939

Total $264,807 $287,713 $149,866 $51,897 $754,283

The Company may renew loans at maturity when requested by a customer whose financial strength appears to support
such renewal or when such renewal appears to be in the Company’s best interest. In such instances, the Company
generally requires payment of accrued interest and may adjust the rate of interest, require a principal reduction or
modify other terms of the loan at the time of renewal.
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Item 7 (Continued)

Nonperforming Assets and Potential Problem Loans

Year-end nonperforming assets and accruing past due loans were as follows:

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Loans Accounted for on Nonaccrual $12,350 $14,408 $18,334 $24,114 $29,851
Loans Accruing Past Due 90 Days or More - 8 7 4 4
Other Real Estate Foreclosed 6,439 8,839 10,402 15,502 15,941
Securities Accounted for on Nonaccrual - - - - 366
Total Nonperforming Assets $18,789 $23,255 $28,743 $39,620 $46,162

Nonperforming Assets by Segment
Construction and Land Development 3,376 7,106 9,655 17,323 23,832
1-4 Family Residential 4,375 4,197 8,237 5,926 7,153
Multifamily Residential - - 173 335 627
Nonfarm Residential 9,182 9,908 8,375 12,441 10,421
Farmland 800 1,103 1,449 1,629 2,413
Commercial and Consumer 1,056 941 854 1,966 1,716
Total Nonperforming Assets $18,789 $23,255 $28,743 $39,620 $46,162

Nonperforming Assets as a Percentage of:
Total Loans and Foreclosed Assets 2.47 % 3.03 % 3.80 % 5.17 % 6.05 %
Total Assets 1.55 % 1.98 % 2.51 % 3.45 % 4.05 %
Nonperforming Loans as a Percentage of:
Total Loans 1.64 % 1.90 % 2.46 % 3.21 % 4.00 %

Supplemental Data:
Trouble Debt Restructured Loans In Compliance with
Modified Terms $17,992 $19,375 $19,229 $20,715 $24,870

Trouble Debt Restructured Loans Past Due 30-89 Days 319 344 757 435 1,377
Accruing Past Due Loans:
30-89 Days Past Due 4,469 10,959 9,701 9,366 14,911
90 or More Days Past Due - 8 7 4 4
Total Accruing Past Due Loans $4,469 $10,967 $9,708 $9,370 $14,915

Allowance for Loan Losses $8,923 $8,604 $8,802 $11,806 $12,737
ALLL as a Percentage of:
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Total Loans 1.18 % 1.13 % 1.18 % 1.57 % 1.70 %
Nonperforming Loans 72.25 % 59.68 % 47.99 % 48.95 % 42.66 %

Nonperforming assets include nonaccrual loans, loans past due 90 days or more, foreclosed real estate and nonaccrual
securities. Nonperforming assets at December 31, 2016 decreased 19.20 percent from December 31, 2015.
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Generally, loans are placed on nonaccrual status if principal or interest payments become 90 days past due and/or
management deems the collectibility of the principal and/or interest to be in question, as well as when required by
regulatory requirements. Loans to a customer whose financial condition has deteriorated are considered for nonaccrual
status whether or not the loan is 90 days or more past due. For consumer loans, collectibility and loss are generally
determined before the loan reaches 90 days past due. Accordingly, losses on consumer loans are recorded at the time
they are determined. Consumer loans that are 90 days or more past due are generally either in liquidation/payment
status or bankruptcy awaiting confirmation of a plan. Once interest accruals are discontinued, accrued but uncollected
interest is charged to current year operations. Subsequent receipts on nonaccrual loans are recorded as a reduction of
principal, and interest income is recorded only after principal recovery is reasonably assured. Classification of a loan
as nonaccrual does not preclude the ultimate collection of loan principal or interest.

Troubled debt restructured loans are loans on which, due to deterioration in the borrower’s financial condition, the
original terms have been modified in favor of the borrower or either principal or interest has been forgiven.

Foreclosed assets represent property acquired as the result of borrower defaults on loans. Foreclosed assets are
recorded at estimated fair value, less estimated selling costs, at the time of foreclosure. Write-downs occurring at
foreclosure are charged against the allowance for loan losses. On an ongoing basis, properties are appraised as
required by market indications and applicable regulations. Write-downs are provided for subsequent declines in value
and are included in other non-interest expense along with other expenses related to maintaining the properties.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is a reserve established through a provision for loan losses charged to expense, which
represents management’s best estimate of probable losses that have been incurred within the existing portfolio of loans.
The allowance, in the judgment of management, is necessary to reserve for estimated loan losses and risks inherent in
the loan portfolio. The allowance for loan losses includes allowance allocations calculated in accordance with current
U.S. accounting standards. The level of the allowance reflects management’s continuing evaluation of industry
concentrations, specific credit risks, loan loss experience, current loan portfolio quality, present economic, political
and regulatory conditions and unidentified losses inherent in the current loan portfolio. Portions of the allowance may
be allocated for specific credits; however, the entire allowance is available for any credit that, in management’s
judgment, should be charged off. While management utilizes its best judgment and information available, the ultimate
adequacy of the allowance is dependent upon a variety of factors beyond the Company’s control, including the
performance of the Company’s loan portfolio, the economy, changes in interest rates and the view of the regulatory
authorities toward loan classifications.
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The Company’s allowance for loan losses consists of specific valuation allowances established for probable losses on
specific loans and historical valuation allowances for other loans with similar risk characteristics. During the first
quarter of 2016 Company management implemented a change to its allowance for loan loss methodology by
expanding the historical loss period from a rolling 8 quarters to 16 quarters. Management believes the longer historical
loss period better reflects the current and expected loss behavior of the loan portfolio within the current credit cycle.
The transition to a rolling 16 quarter loss period will be complete in the first quarter of 2017. As of December 31,
2016, this change in the historical loss period resulted in an increase to the allowance for loan losses of $804,000. The
loss history period used at December 31, 2015 and 2014 was based on the loss rate from the eight quarters ended
September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Effective with the quarter ended June 30, 2015, the calculation of the amount needed in the Allowance for Loan
Losses changed. Management determined that the segmentation method for the ASC 450-20 portion of the loan
portfolio should be changed to bank call report categories. Prior to this change, the ASC 450-20 segmentation
categorized loans by various non-owner occupied commercial real estate loan types and risk grades for the remainder
of the ASC 450-20 portion of the portfolio. On the date of change, June 30, 2015, the change in methodology resulted
in an increase to the calculated allowance for loan loss reserve of $1,621,424.

The allowances established for probable losses on specific loans are the result of management’s quarterly review of
substandard loans with an outstanding balance of $250,000 or more. This review process usually involves regional
credit officers along with local lending officers reviewing the loans for impairment. Specific valuation allowances are
determined after considering the borrower’s financial condition, collateral deficiencies, and economic conditions
affecting the borrower’s industry, among other things. In the case of collateral dependent loans, collateral shortfall is
most often based upon local market real estate value estimates. This review process is performed at the subsidiary
bank level and is reviewed at the parent Company level.

Once the loan becomes impaired, it is removed from the pool of loans covered by the general reserve and reviewed
individually for exposure as described above. In cases where the individual review reveals no exposure, no reserve is
recorded for that loan, either through an individual reserve or through a general reserve. If, however, the individual
review of the loan does indicate some exposure, management often charges off this exposure, rather than recording a
specific reserve. In these instances, a loan which becomes nonperforming could actually reduce the allowance for loan
losses. Those loans deemed uncollectible are transferred to our problem loan department for workout, foreclosure
and/or liquidation. The problem loan department obtains a current appraisal on the property in order to record the fair
market value (less selling expenses) when the property is foreclosed on and moved into other real estate.
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The allowances established for the remainder of the loan portfolio are based on historical loss factors, adjusted for
certain qualitative factors, which are applied to groups of loans with similar risk characteristics. Loans are segregated
into fifteen separate groups based on call codes. Most of the Company’s charge-offs during the past two years have
been real estate dependent loans. The historical loss ratios applied to these groups of loans are updated quarterly based
on actual charge-off experience. The historical loss ratios are further adjusted by qualitative factors.
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Management evaluates the adequacy of the allowance for each of these components on a quarterly basis. Peer
comparisons, industry comparisons, and regulatory guidelines are also used in the determination of the general
valuation allowance. Loans identified as losses by management, internal loan review, and/or bank examiners are
charged off. Additional information about the Company’s allowance for loan losses is provided in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for Allowance for Loan Losses.

The following table sets forth the breakdown of the allowance for loan losses by loan category for the periods
indicated. The allocation of the allowance to each category is subjective and is not necessarily indicative of future
losses and does not restrict the use of the allowance to absorb losses in any other category.

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Reserve %* Reserve %* Reserve %* Reserve %* Reserve %*

Commercial and
Agricultural
Commercial $456 6 % $855 6 % $497 7 % 1,017 6 % 981 7 %
Agricultural 168 2 % 203 3 % 304 2 % 294 2 % 296 1 %

Real Estate
Commercial Construction 323 4 % 691 5 % 1,223 7 % 1,782 7 % 1,890 7 %
Residential Construction 13 2 % 20 1 % 138 1 % 138 1 % 138 1 %
Commercial 5,751 46 % 3,851 46 % 3,665 45 % 4,380 46 % 5,163 45 %
Residential 1,396 26 % 1,990 26 % 2,425 27 % 3,278 27 % 3,406 27 %
Farmland 722 9 % 912 8 % 104 7 % 312 6 % 291 7 %

Consumer and Other
Consumer 80 3 % 63 3 % 67 3 % 243 3 % 228 4 %
Other 14 2 % 19 2 % 379 1 % 362 2 % 344 1 %

$8,923 100% $8,604 100% $8,802 100% $11,806 100% $12,737 100%

*Percentage represents the loan balance in each category expressed as a percentage of total end of period loans.
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The following table presents an analysis of the Company’s loan loss experience for the periods indicated.

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Allowance for Loan Losses at Beginning of Year $8,604 $8,802 $11,806 $12,737 $15,650

Charge-Offs
Commercial 305 455 625 121 653
Agricultural 19 5 - 34 3
Commercial Construction 25 98 1,543 2,071 4,106
Residential Construction - - - - -
Commercial 992 275 1,327 2,873 4,326
Residential 362 930 1,034 706 961
Farmland 120 40 233 21 225
Consumer 265 255 342 398 169
Other - 25 - 4 11

2,088 2,083 5,104 6,228 10,454

Recoveries
Commercial 67 52 76 56 140
Agricultural 4 3 3 6 -
Commercial Construction 814 486 485 253 209
Residential Construction - - - - -
Commercial 206 270 90 298 233
Residential 50 110 31 65 47
Farmland 145 20 20 22 5
Consumer 53 62 72 94 82
Other 6 16 15 18 40

1,345 1,019 792 812 756

Net Charge-Offs 743 1,064 4,312 5,416 9,698

Provision for Loans Losses 1,062 866 1,308 4,485 6,785

Allowance for Loan Losses at End of Year $8,923 $8,604 $8,802 $11,806 $12,737

Ratio of Net Charge-Offs to Average Loans 0.10 % 0.14 % 0.58 % 0.73 % 1.34 %
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The allowance for loan losses increased from $8.60 million, or 1.13 percent of total loans at December 31, 2015 to
$8.92 million, or 1.18 percent at December 31, 2016. The provision for loan losses reflects loan quality trends,
including the level of net charge-offs or recoveries, among other factors. Significant changes in the allowance during
2016 was the reduction in the net charge-offs in 2016 to $743 thousand from $1.06 million in 2015, or a reduction of
$321 thousand. Significant changes in the allowance during 2015 was the reduction in the net charge-offs in 2015 to
$1.06 million from $4.31 million in 2014. The Company believes that collection efforts have reduced impaired loans
and the reduction in net charge-offs runs parallel with the improvement in the substandard assets. As we begin to see
stabilization in the economy and the housing and real estate market, we expect continued improvement in our
substandard assets, including net charge-offs. There were no charge-offs or recoveries related to foreign loans during
any of the periods presented.
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Investment Portfolio

The following table presents carrying values of investment securities held by the Company as of December 31, 2016,
2015 and 2014.

2016 2015 2014

State, County and Municipal $4,561 $5,099 $3,560
Mortgage-Backed Securities 319,097 291,050 271,064
Total Investment Securities and Mortgage-Backed Securities $323,658 $296,149 $274,624

The following table represents expected maturities and weighted-average yields of investment securities held by the
Company as of December 31, 2016. (Mortgage-backed securities are based on the average life at the projected speed,
while State and Political Subdivisions reflect anticipated calls being exercised.)

After 1 Year But After 5 Years
But

Within 1 Year Within 5 Years Within 10
Years After 10 Years

Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield

Mortgage-Backed Securities $32,166 1.54% $191,290 1.57% $73,706 2.40% $21,935 2.33%
Obligations of State and Political
Subdivisions 363 3.72 2,570 2.15 1,391 2.94 237 4.03

Total Investment Portfolio $32,529 1.56% $193,860 1.58% $75,097 2.41% $22,172 2.35%

Securities are classified as held to maturity and carried at amortized cost when management has the positive intent and
ability to hold them to maturity. Securities are classified as available for sale when they might be sold before maturity.
Securities available for sale are carried at fair value, with unrealized holding gains and losses reported in other
comprehensive income. The Company has 100 percent of its portfolio classified as available for sale.
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At December 31, 2016, there were no holdings of any one issuer, other than the U.S. government and its agencies, in
an amount greater than 10 percent of the Company’s stockholders’ equity.

The average yield of the securities portfolio was 1.79 percent in 2016 compared to 1.57 percent in 2015 and 1.71
percent in 2014. The increase in the average yield from 2015 to 2016 was primarily attributed to the adjustment in
amortization resulting from the deceleration of prepayment speeds. The decrease in the average yield from 2014 to
2015 was primarily attributed to the adjustment in amortization resulting from the acceleration of prepayment speeds.
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Deposits

The following table presents the average amount outstanding and the average rate paid on deposits by the Company
for the years 2016, 2015 and 2014.

2016 2015 2014
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate

Noninterest-Bearing Demand Deposits $140,338 $128,541 $118,452
Interest-Bearing Demand and Savings 469,740 0.36 % 430,731 0.35 % 394,615 0.35 %
Time Deposits 383,628 0.80 % 417,080 0.81 % 445,993 0.83 %

Total Deposits $993,706 0.48 % $976,352 0.50 % $959,060 0.53 %

The following table presents the maturities of the Company’s time deposits as of December 31, 2016.

Time Time
Deposits Deposits

$100,000 Less
Than

or
Greater $100,000 Total

Months to Maturity
3 or Less $31,113 $43,150 $74,263
Over 3 through 6 30,844 33,443 64,287
Over 6 through 12 61,656 56,680 118,336
Over 12 Months 59,998 50,344 110,342

$183,611 $183,617 $367,228

Average deposits increased $17.35 million in 2016 compared to 2015 and increased $17.29 million in 2015 compared
to 2014. The increase in 2016 included $39.01 million, or 9.06 percent in interest-bearing demand and savings
deposits while, at the same time noninterest bearing deposits increased $11.80 million, or 9.18 percent and time
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deposits decreased $33.45 million, or 8.02 percent. The increase in 2015 included $36.12 million, or 9.15 percent in
interest-bearing demand and savings deposits while, at the same time noninterest bearing deposits increased $10.09
million, or 8.52 percent and time deposits decreased $28.91 million, or 6.48 percent. Accordingly, the ratio of average
noninterest-bearing deposits to total average deposits was 14.12 percent in 2016, 13.17 percent in 2015 and 12.35
percent in 2014. The general decrease in market rates in 2016 had the effect of (i) decreasing the average cost of
interest-bearing deposits by 2 basis points in 2016 compared to 2015 and (ii) mitigating a portion of the impact of
decreasing yields on interest-earning assets in the Company’s net interest income in 2016. The general decrease in
market rates in 2015 had the effect of (i) decreasing the average cost of interest-bearing deposits by 3 basis points in
2015 compared to 2014 and (ii) mitigating a portion of the impact of decreasing yields on interest-earning assets in the
Company’s net interest income in 2015.
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Total average interest-bearing deposits increased $5.56 million, or 0.66 percent in 2016 compared to 2015 and
increased $7.20 million, or 0.86 percent in 2015 compared to 2014. This increase was primarily attributable to the
increase in interest-bearing demand and savings accounts in 2016 and in 2015 as well.

The Company supplements deposit sources with brokered deposits. As of December 31, 2016, the Company had
$49.30 million, or 4.72 percent of total deposits, in brokered certificates of deposit attracted by external third parties.
Additional information is provided in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for Deposits.

Off-Balance-Sheet Arrangements, Commitments, Guarantees, and Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes the Company’s contractual obligations and other commitments to make future
payments as of December 31, 2016. Payments for borrowings do not include interest. Payments related to leases are
based on actual payments specified in the underlying contracts. Loan commitments and standby letters of credit are
presented at contractual amounts; however, since many of these commitments are expected to expire unused or only
partially used, the total amounts of these commitments do not necessarily reflect future cash requirements. The
off-balance-sheet arrangements for loan commitments consist of approximately $10 million in 1-4 residential home
equity and construction loans, $4 million in commercial real estate construction loans, $19 million in
commercial/industrial loans and $38 million in the overdraft privilege program.

Payments Due by Period

1 Year
or

Less

More
than

1 Year
but

Less
Than

3 Years

3 Years
or

More
but

Less
Than 5

Years

5 Years

or
More

Total

Contractual Obligations:
Subordinated Debentures $- $- $- $24,229 $24,229
Federal Home Loan Bank Advances - 7,500 2,500 36,000 46,000
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Operating Leases 40 - - - 40
Deposits with Stated Maturity Dates 256,886 85,794 15,859 8,689 367,228

$256,926 93,294 18,359 68,918 $437,497

Other Commitments:
Loan Commitments 71,359 - - - 71,359
Standby Letters of Credit 1,551 - - - 1,551

72,910 - - - 72,910
Total Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments $329,836 $93,294 $18,359 $68,918 $510,407

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has entered into off-balance sheet financial instruments which are not
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. These instruments include commitments to extend credit, standby
letters of credit, performance letters of credit, guarantees and liability for assets held in trust.

Such financial instruments are recorded in the financial statements when funds are disbursed or the instruments
become payable. The Company uses the same credit policies for these off-balance sheet financial instruments as they
do for instruments that are recorded in the consolidated financial statements.
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Loan Commitments. The Company enters into contractual commitments to extend credit, normally with fixed
expiration dates or termination clauses, at specified rates and for specific purposes. Substantially all of the Company’s
commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards at the time of loan
funding. The Company minimizes its exposure to loss under these commitments by subjecting them to credit approval
and monitoring procedures. Management assesses the credit risk associated with certain commitments to extend credit
in determining the level of the allowance for loan losses. Loan commitments outstanding at December 31, 2016 are
included in the preceding table.

Standby Letters of Credit. Letters of credit are written conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee
the performance of a customer to a third party. In the event the customer does not perform in accordance with the
terms of the agreement with the third party, the Company would be required to fund the commitment. The maximum
potential amount of future payments the Company could be required to make is represented by the contractual amount
of the commitment. If the commitment is funded, the Company would be entitled to seek recovery from the customer.
The Company’s policies generally require that standby letters of credit arrangements contain security and debt
covenants similar to those contained in loan agreements. Standby letters of credit outstanding at December 31, 2016
are included in the preceding table.

Capital and Liquidity

At December 31, 2016, shareholders’ equity totaled $93.39 million compared to $95.46 million at December 31, 2015.
In addition to net income of $8.67 million, other significant changes in shareholders’ equity during 2016 included
$1.49 million of dividends declared on preferred stock and $8.66 million redemption of preferred stock. The
accumulated other comprehensive loss component of stockholders’ equity totaled $(5.02) million at December 31,
2016 compared to $(4.43) million at December 31, 2015. This fluctuation was mostly related to the after-tax effect of
changes in the fair value of securities available for sale. Under regulatory requirements, the unrealized gain or loss on
securities available for sale does not increase or reduce regulatory capital and is not included in the calculation of
risk-based capital and leverage ratios. Regulatory agencies for banks and bank holding companies utilize capital
guidelines designed to measure Tier 1 and total capital and take into consideration the risk inherent in both on-balance
sheet and off-balance sheet items. Tier 1 capital consists of common stock and qualifying preferred stockholders’
equity less goodwill and disallowed deferred tax assets. Tier 2 capital consists of certain convertible, subordinated and
other qualifying debt and the allowance for loan losses up to 1.25 percent of risk-weighted assets. The Company has
no Tier 2 capital other than the allowance for loan losses.
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Using the capital requirements presently in effect, the Tier 1 ratio as of December 31, 2016 was 15.50 percent and
total Tier 1 and 2 risk-based capital was 16.64 percent. Both of these measures compare favorably with the regulatory
minimum of 6 percent for Tier 1 and 8 percent for total risk-based capital. The Company’s common equity Tier 1 ratio
as of December 31, 2016 was 11.32, which exceeds the regulatory minimum of 4.50 percent. The Company’s Tier 1
leverage ratio as of December 31, 2016 was 10.29 percent, which exceeds the required ratio standard of 4 percent.

For 2016, average capital was $100.11 million, representing 8.60 percent of average assets for the year. This compares
to 8.87 percent for 2015.

For 2016, the Company did not have any material commitments for capital expenditures.
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The Company did not pay any common stock dividends in 2016 or 2015. The Company suspended common stock
dividend payments beginning in the third quarter of 2009 for capital retention purposes.

The Company declared dividends of $1,493 and $2,375 on preferred stock during 2016 and 2015, respectively. On
November 17, 2014 the Company reinstated dividend payments after being on deferral since February 12, 2012, on
the Preferred Stock and paid $5.5 million of accumulated dividends in arrears to the holders of the Preferred Stock.
Additional information is provided in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for Preferred Stock.

The Company, primarily through the actions of its subsidiary bank, engages in liquidity management to ensure
adequate cash flow for deposit withdrawals, credit commitments and repayments of borrowed funds. Needs are met
through loan repayments, net interest and fee income and the sale or maturity of existing assets. In addition, liquidity
is continuously provided through the acquisition of new deposits, the renewal of maturing deposits and external
borrowings.

Management monitors deposit flow and evaluates alternate pricing structures to retain and grow deposits. To the
extent needed to fund loan demand, traditional local deposit funding sources are supplemented by the use of FHLB
borrowings, brokered deposits and other wholesale deposit sources outside the immediate market area. Internal
policies have been updated to monitor the use of various core and non-core funding sources, and to balance ready
access with risk and cost. Through various asset/liability management strategies, a balance is maintained among goals
of liquidity, safety and earnings potential. Internal policies that are consistent with regulatory liquidity guidelines are
monitored and enforced by the Bank.

The investment portfolio provides a ready means to raise cash if liquidity needs arise. As of December 31, 2016, the
available for sale bond portfolio totaled $323.7 million. At December 31, 2015, the available for sale bond portfolio
totaled $296.2 million. Only marketable investment grade bonds are purchased. Although most of the Banks’ bond
portfolios are encumbered as pledges to secure various public funds deposits, repurchase agreements, and for other
purposes, management can restructure and free up investment securities for sale if required to meet liquidity needs.

Management continually monitors the relationship of loans to deposits as it primarily determines the Company’s
liquidity posture. Colony had ratios of loans to deposits of 72.2 percent as of December 31, 2016 and 75.0 percent as
of December 31, 2015. Management employs alternative funding sources when deposit balances will not meet loan
demands. The ratios of loans to all funding sources (excluding Subordinated Debentures) at December 31, 2016 and
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December 31, 2015 were 69.2 percent and 72.1 percent, respectively. Management continues to emphasize programs
to generate local core deposits as our Company’s primary funding sources. The stability of the Banks’ core deposit base
is an important factor in Colony’s liquidity position. A heavy percentage of the deposit base is comprised of accounts
of individuals and small businesses with comprehensive banking relationships and limited volatility. At December 31,
2016 and December 31, 2015, the Bank had $184 million and $203 million, respectively, in certificates of deposit of
$100,000 or more. These larger deposits represented 17.6 percent and 20.1 percent of respective total deposits.
Management seeks to monitor and control the use of these larger certificates, which tend to be more volatile in nature,
to ensure an adequate supply of funds as needed. Relative interest costs to attract local core relationships are compared
to market rates of interest on various external deposit sources to help minimize the Company’s overall cost of funds.

- 65 -

Edgar Filing: COLONY BANKCORP INC - Form 10-K

125



Part II (Continued)

Item 7 (Continued)

The Company supplemented deposit sources with brokered deposits. As of December 31, 2016, the Company had
$49.3 million or 4.7 percent of total deposits in CDARS. Additional information is provided in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements regarding these brokered deposits. Additionally, the Company uses external
deposit listing services to obtain out-of-market certificates of deposit at competitive interest rates when funding is
needed. The deposits obtained from listing services are often referred to as wholesale or Internet CDs. As of
December 31, 2016, the Company had $15.6 million, or 1.5 percent of total deposits, in internet certificates of deposit
obtained through deposit listing services.

To plan for contingent sources of funding not satisfied by both local and out-of-market deposit balances, Colony and
its subsidiary have established multiple borrowing sources to augment their funds management. The Company has
borrowing capacity through membership of the Federal Home Loan Bank program. The Bank has also established
overnight borrowing for Federal Funds Purchased through various correspondent banks. Management believes the
various funding sources discussed above are adequate to meet the Company’s liquidity needs in the future without any
material adverse impact on operating results.

Liquidity measures the ability to meet current and future cash flow needs as they become due. The liquidity of a
financial institution reflects its ability to meet loan requests, to accommodate possible outflows in deposits and to take
advantage of interest rate market opportunities. The ability of a financial institution to meet its current financial
obligations is a function of balance sheet structure, the ability to liquidate assets, and the availability of alternative
sources of funds. The Company seeks to ensure its funding needs are met by maintaining a level of liquid funds
through asset/liability management.

Asset liquidity is provided by liquid assets which are readily marketable or pledgeable or which will mature in the
near future. Liquid assets include cash, interest-bearing deposits in banks, securities available for sale and federal
funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements.

Liability liquidity is provided by access to funding sources which include core deposits. Should the need arise, the
Company also maintains relationships with the Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Reserve Bank, two correspondent
banks and repurchase agreement lines that can provide funds on short notice.

Since Colony is a bank holding Company and does not conduct operations, its primary sources of liquidity are
dividends up streamed from the subsidiary bank and borrowings from outside sources.
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The liquidity position of the Company is continuously monitored and adjustments are made to the balance between
sources and uses of funds as deemed appropriate. Management is not aware of any events that are reasonably likely to
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s liquidity, capital resources or operations. In addition, management is
not aware of any regulatory recommendations regarding liquidity, which if implemented, would have a material
adverse effect on the Company.
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Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The Company’s financial statements included herein have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States (GAAP). GAAP presently requires the Company to measure financial position
and operating results primarily in terms of historic dollars. Changes in the relative value of money due to inflation or
recession are generally not considered. The primary effect of inflation on the operations of the Company is reflected in
increased operating costs, though given recent economic conditions, the Company has not experienced any material
effects of inflation during the last three fiscal years. In management’s opinion, changes in interest rates affect the
financial condition of a financial institution to a far greater degree than changes in the inflation rate. While interest
rates are greatly influenced by changes in the inflation rate, they do not necessarily change at the same rate or in the
same magnitude as the inflation rate. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors that are beyond the control of
the Company, including changes in the expected rate of inflation, the influence of general and local economic
conditions and the monetary and fiscal policies of the United States government, its agencies and various other
governmental regulatory authorities, among other things, as further discussed in the next section.

Regulatory and Economic Policies

The Company’s business and earnings are affected by general and local economic conditions and by the monetary and
fiscal policies of the United States government, its agencies and various other governmental regulatory authorities,
among other things. The Federal Reserve Board regulates the supply of money in order to influence general economic
conditions. Among the instruments of monetary policy available to the Federal Reserve Board are (i) conducting open
market operations in United States government obligations, (ii) changing the discount rate on financial institution
borrowings, (iii) imposing or changing reserve requirements against financial institution deposits, and (iv) restricting
certain borrowings and imposing or changing reserve requirements against certain borrowings by financial institutions
and their affiliates. These methods are used in varying degrees and combinations to affect directly the availability of
bank loans and deposits, as well as the interest rates charged on loans and paid on deposits. For that reason alone, the
policies of the Federal Reserve Board have a material effect on the earnings of the Company.

Governmental policies have had a significant effect on the operating results of commercial banks in the past and are
expected to continue to do so in the future; however, the Company cannot accurately predict the nature, timing or
extent of any effect such policies may have on its future business and earnings.

Edgar Filing: COLONY BANKCORP INC - Form 10-K

128



Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies under the section headed Changes in Accounting Principles
and Effects of New Accounting Pronouncements included in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Market Risk and Interest Rate Sensitivity

Our financial performance is impacted by, among other factors, interest rate risk and credit risk. We do not utilize
derivatives to mitigate our credit risk, relying instead on an extensive loan review process and our allowance for loan
losses.

Interest rate risk is the change in value due to changes in interest rates. The Company is exposed only to U.S. dollar
interest rate changes and, accordingly, the Company manages exposure by considering the possible changes in the net
interest margin. The Company does not have any trading instruments nor does it classify any portion of its investment
portfolio as held for trading. The Company does not engage in any hedging activity or utilize any derivatives. The
Company has no exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk, commodity price risk and other market risks.
Interest rate risk is addressed by our Asset & Liability Management Committee (ALCO) which includes senior
management representatives. The ALCO monitors interest rate risk by analyzing the potential impact to the net
portfolio of equity value and net interest income from potential changes to interest rates and considers the impact of
alternative strategies or changes in balance sheet structure.

Interest rates play a major part in the net interest income of financial institutions. The repricing of interest earnings
assets and interest-bearing liabilities can influence the changes in net interest income. The timing of repriced assets
and liabilities is Gap management and our Company has established its policy to maintain a Gap ratio in the one-year
time horizon of .80 to 1.20.

Our exposure to interest rate risk is reviewed at least quarterly by our Board of Directors and the ALCO. Interest rate
risk exposure is measured using interest rate sensitivity analysis to determine our change in net portfolio value in the
event of assumed changes in interest rates. In order to reduce the exposure to interest rate fluctuations, we have
implemented strategies to more closely match our balance sheet composition. The Company has engaged FTN
Financial to run a quarterly asset/liability model for interest rate risk analysis. We are generally focusing our
investment activities on securities with terms or average lives in the 3 ½ - 5 ½ year range.

Market risk reflects the risk of economic loss resulting from adverse changes in market prices and interest rates. This
risk of loss can be reflected in either reduced current market values or reduced current and potential net income.
Colony’s most significant market risk is interest rate risk. This risk arises primarily from Colony’s extension of loans
and acceptance of deposits.
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Managing interest rate risk is a primary goal of the asset liability management function. Colony attempts to achieve
stability in net interest income while limiting volatility arising from changes in interest rates. Colony seeks to achieve
this goal by balancing the maturity and repricing characteristics of assets and liabilities. Colony manages its exposure
to fluctuations in interest rates through policies established by ALCO and approved by the Board of Directors. ALCO
meets at least quarterly and has responsibility for developing asset liability management policies, reviewing the
interest rate sensitivity of Colony, and developing and implementing strategies to improve balance sheet structure and
interest rate risk positioning.
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Part II (Continued)

Item 7 (Continued)

Colony measures the sensitivity of net interest income to changes in market interest rates through the utilization of
Asset/Liability simulation modeling. On at least a quarterly basis, the following twenty-four month time period is
simulated to determine a baseline net interest income forecast and the sensitivity of this forecast to changes in interest
rates. These simulations include all of Colony’s earning assets and liabilities. Forecasted balance sheet changes,
primarily reflecting loan and deposit growth and forecasts, are included in the periods modeled. Projected rates for
loans and deposits are based on management’s outlook and local market conditions.

The magnitude and velocity of rate changes among the various asset and liability groups exhibit different
characteristics for each possible interest rate scenario; additionally, customer loan and deposit preferences can vary in
response to changing interest rates. Simulation modeling enables Colony to capture the expected effect of these
differences. Assumptions utilized in the model are updated on an ongoing basis and are reviewed and approved by the
ALCO Committee of the Board of Directors.

Colony has modeled its baseline net interest income forecast assuming a flat interest rate environment with the federal
funds rate at the Federal Reserve's current targeted range of 0.50% to 0.25% and the current prime rate of 3.75%.
Colony has modeled the impact of a gradual increase in short-term rates of 100 and 200 basis points and a decline of
100 basis points to determine the sensitivity of net interest income for the next twelve months. As illustrated in the
table below, the net interest income sensitivity model indicates that, compared with a net interest income forecast
assuming stable rates, net interest income is projected to increase by 1.88% and increase by 3.35% if interest rates
increased by 100 and 200 basis points, respectively. Net interest income is projected to decline by 3.67% if interest
rates decreased by 100 basis points. These changes were within Colony’s policy limit of a maximum 15% negative
change.

Twelve Month Net Interest Income Sensitivity

Estimated
Change in Net
Interest
Income

As of
December 31,

Change in Short-term Interest Rates (in basis points) 2016 2015
+200 3.35 % -0.32%
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+100 1.88 % 0.13 %
Flat - % - %
-100 -3.67% -1.16%

The measured interest rate sensitivity indicates an asset sensitive position over the next year, which could serve to
improve net interest income in a rising interest rate environment. The actual realized change in net interest income
would depend on several factors, some of which could serve to reduce or eliminate the asset sensitivity noted above.
These factors include a higher than projected level of deposit customer migration to higher cost deposits, such as
certificates of deposit, which would increase total interest expense and serve to reduce the realized level of asset
sensitivity. Another factor which could impact the realized interest rate sensitivity in a rising rate environment is the
repricing behavior of interest bearing non-maturity deposits. Assumptions for repricing are expressed as a beta relative
to the change in the prime rate. For instance, a 25% beta would correspond to a deposit rate that would increase 0.25%
for every 1% increase in the prime rate. Projected betas for interest bearing non-maturity deposit repricing are a key
component of determining the Company's interest rate risk position. Should realized betas be higher than projected
betas, the expected benefit from higher interest rates would be reduced.
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Part II (Continued)

Item 7 (Continued)

The net interest income simulation model is the primary tool utilized to evaluate potential interest rate risks over a
shorter term time horizon. Colony also evaluates potential longer term interest rate risk through modeling and
evaluation of economic value of equity (EVE). This EVE modeling allows Colony to capture longer-term repricing
risk and options risk embedded in the balance sheet. Simulation modeling is utilized to measure the economic value of
equity and its sensitivity to immediate changes in interest rates. These simulations value only the current balance sheet
and do not incorporate growth assumptions used in the net interest income simulation. The economic value of equity
is the net fair value of assets and liabilities derived from the present value of future cash flows discounted at current
market interest rates. From this baseline valuation, Colony evaluates changes in the value of each of these items in
various interest rate scenarios to determine the net impact on the economic value of equity. Key assumptions utilized
in the model, namely loan prepayments, deposit pricing betas, and non-maturity deposit durations have a significant
impact on the results of the EVE simulations.

As illustrated in the table below, the economic value of equity model indicates that, compared with a valuation
assuming stable rates, EVE is projected to increase by 9.59% and 16.27%, assuming an immediate and sustained
increase in interest rates of 100 and 200 basis points, respectively. The primary reason for the increase in asset
sensitivity from the prior year is a more aggressive assumption regarding non-maturity deposit durations. Assuming
an immediate 100 basis point decline in rates, EVE is projected to decrease by 12.44%. These changes were within
Colony’s policy except in the -100 basis point change, which limits the maximum negative change in EVE to 10% of
the base EVE. We believe this projection outside of policy is mitigated by the unlikely reduction in interest rates due
to the current rate environment.

Economic Value of Equity Sensitivity

Estimated
Change in EVE

As of December
31,

Immediate Change in Interest Rates

(in basis points) 2016 2015

+200 16.27 % 13.43%
+100 9.59 % 8.62 %
-100 -12.44% -7.74 %
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Colony is also subject to market risk in certain of its fee income business lines. Financial management services
revenues, which include trust, brokerage, and asset management fees, can be affected by risk in the securities markets,
primarily the equity securities market. A significant portion of the fees in this unit are determined based upon a
percentage of asset values. Weaker securities markets and lower equity values have an adverse impact on the fees
generated by these operations. Trading account assets, maintained to facilitate brokerage customer activity, are also
subject to market risk. This risk is not considered significant, as trading activities are limited and subject to risk policy
limits. Mortgage banking income is also subject to market risk. Mortgage loan originations are sensitive to levels of
mortgage interest rates and therefore, mortgage banking income could be negatively impacted during a period of
rising interest rates. The extension of commitments to customers to fund mortgage loans also subjects Colony to
market risk. This risk is primarily created by the time period between making the commitment and closing and
delivering the loan. Colony seeks to minimize this exposure by utilizing various risk management tools, the primary of
which are forward sales commitments and best efforts commitments.
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Part II (Continued)

Item 7 (Continued)

The following table is an analysis of the Company’s interest rate-sensitivity position at December 31, 2016. The
interest-bearing rate-sensitivity gap, which is the difference between interest-earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities by repricing period, is based upon maturity or first repricing opportunity, along with a cumulative interest
rate-sensitivity gap. It is important to note that the table indicates a position at a specific point in time and may not be
reflective of positions at other times during the year or in subsequent periods. Major changes in the gap position can
be, and are, made promptly as market outlooks change.

Assets and Liabilities Repricing Within
3 Months 4 to 12 1 to 5 Over 5
or Less Months 1 Year Years Years Total

INTEREST-EARNING
ASSETS:
Interest-Bearing Deposits $46,345 $- $46,345 $- $- $46,345
Investment Securities 3,298 4,494 7,792 198,173 117,693 323,658
Loans, Net of Unearned Income 133,589 131,037 264,626 437,399 51,897 753,922
Other Interest- Earning Assets 3,010 - 3,010 - - 3,010

Total Interest-Earning Assets 186,242 135,531 $321,773 635,572 169,590 $1,126,935

INTEREST-BEARING
LIABILITIES:
Interest-Bearing Demand
Deposits (1) 448,004 - 448,004 - - 448,004

Savings (1) 70,066 - 70,066 - - 70,066
Time Deposits 74,263 182,623 256,886 101,653 8,689 367,228
Other Borrowings - - - 10,000 36,000 46,000
Subordinated Debentures 24,229 - 24,229 - - 24,229

Total Interest-Bearing Liabilities 616,562 182,623 799,185 111,653 44,689 955,527

Interest Rate-Sensitivity Gap (430,320) (47,092 ) (477,412) 523,919 124,901 $171,408

Cumulative Interest-Sensitivity
Gap $(430,320) $(477,412) $(477,412) $46,507 $171,408

Interest Rate-Sensitivity Gap as
a Percentage of Interest-Earning
Assets

(38.18 )% (4.18 )% (42.36 )% 46.49 % 11.08 %
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Cumulative Interest
Rate-Sensitivity as a Percentage
of Interest-Earning Assets

(38.18 )% (42.36 )% (42.36 )% 4.13 % 15.21 %

(1) Interest-bearing Demand and Savings Accounts for repricing purposes are considered to reprice within 3 months or
less.
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Part II (Continued)

Item 7 (Continued)

The foregoing table indicates that we had a one year negative gap of $477.4 million, or 42.36 percent of total
interest-earning assets at December 31, 2016. In theory, this would indicate that at December 31, 2016, $477.4 million
more in liabilities than assets would reprice if there were a change in interest rates over the next 365 days. Thus, if
interest rates were to decline, the gap would indicate a resulting increase in net interest margin. However, changes in
the mix of interest-earning assets or supporting liabilities can either increase or decrease the net interest margin
without affecting interest rate sensitivity. In addition, the interest rate spread between an asset and our supporting
liability can vary significantly while the timing of repricing of both the assets and our supporting liability can remain
the same, thus impacting net interest income. This characteristic is referred to as a basis risk and, generally, relates to
the repricing characteristics of short-term funding sources such as certificates of deposits.

Gap analysis has certain limitations. Measuring the volume of repricing or maturing assets and liabilities does not
always measure the full impact on the portfolio value of equity or net interest income. Gap analysis does not account
for rate caps on products; dynamic changes such as increasing prepay speeds as interest rates decrease, basis risk, or
the benefit of non-rate funding sources. The majority of our loan portfolio reprices quickly and completely following
changes in market rates, while non-term deposit rates in general move slowly and usually incorporate only a fraction
of the change in rates. Products categorized as nonrate sensitive, such as our noninterest-bearing demand deposits, in
the gap analysis behave like long term fixed rate funding sources. Both of these factors tend to make our actual
behavior more asset sensitive than is indicated in the gap analysis. In fact, we experience higher net interest income
when rates rise, opposite what is indicated by the gap analysis. Therefore, management uses gap analysis, net interest
margin analysis and market value of portfolio equity as our primary interest rate risk management tools. The
Company has established its one year gap to be 80 percent to 120 percent. The most recent analysis as of December
31, 2016 indicates a one year gap of 122 percent. The analysis reflects slight net interest margin compression in both a
declining and increasing interest rate environment. Given that interest rates have basically “bottomed-out” with the
recent Federal Reserve action, the Company is anticipating interest rates to increase in the future though we believe
that interest rates will remain flat most of 2016. The Company is focusing on areas to minimize margin compression
in the future by minimizing longer term fixed rate loans, shortening on the yield curve with investments, securing
longer term FHLB advances, securing certificates of deposit for longer terms and focusing on reduction of
nonperforming assets.

The Company utilizes FTN Financial Asset/Liability Management Analysis for a more dynamic analysis of balance
sheet structure. The Company has established policies for rate shock per basis point (bp) for earnings at risk for net
interest income and for equity at risk. The following table shows the policy limits with the rate shock for earnings at
risk and equity at risk as of December 31, 2016.

Rate Policy Immediate
Shock

Immediate
Shock
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Shock Limit (-)
decrease
bp

(+)
increase
bp

Net Interest Income –
Earnings at Risk +/- 100 bp +/- 10% -3.83 % 2.01 %

+/- 200 bp +/- 15% -9.39 3.35
+/- 300 bp +/- 20% -10.90 4.75
+/- 400 bp +/- 25% -12.53 4.82

Equity at Risk +/- 100 bp +/- 10% -12.44 9.59
+/- 200 bp +/- 20% -28.91 16.27
+/- 300 bp +/- 30% -36.87 20.52
+/- 400 bp +/- 40% -37.08 23.18
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Part II (Continued)

Item 7 (Continued)

Return on Assets and Stockholder’s Equity

The following table presents selected financial ratios for each of the periods indicated.

Years Ended
December 31
2016 2015 2014

Return on Average Assets(1) 0.62% 0.52% 0.43%

Return on Average Equity(1) 7.17% 5.90% 5.11%

Equity to Assets 7.72% 8.13% 8.63%

Common Stock Dividends Declared $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

(1) Computed using net income available to common shareholders.
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Part II (Continued)

Item 7A

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The information required by this item is located in Item 7 under the heading Market Risk and Interest Rate Sensitivity.

Item 8

Financial Statements and Supplemental Data

The following consolidated financial statements of the Registrant and its subsidiaries are included on Exhibit 13 of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Consolidated Balance Sheets - December 31, 2016 and 2015

Consolidated Statements of Income - Years Ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income - Years Ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity - Years Ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Years Ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Part II (Continued)

Item 8 (Continued)

Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2016
and 2015:

Three Months Ended
December
31

September
30 June 30 March

31
2016 ($ in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)
Interest Income $11,203 $ 11,156 $11,141 $11,089
Interest Expense 1,634 1,600 1,616 1,633
Net Interest Income 9,569 9,556 9,525 9,456
Provision for Loan Losses - 354 354 354
Securities Gains - 256 127 2
Noninterest Income 2,392 2,381 2,225 2,170
Noninterest Expense 8,830 8,654 8,354 8,235
Income Before Income Taxes 3,131 3,185 3,169 3,039
Provision for Income Taxes 944 927 1,002 978
Net Income 2,187 2,258 2,167 2,061
Preferred Stock Dividends 304 378 406 405
Net Income Available to Common Stockholders $1,883 $ 1,880 $1,761 $1,656

Net Income Per Common Share
Basic $0.22 $ 0.22 $0.21 $0.20
Diluted $0.22 $ 0.22 $0.21 $0.20

2015
Interest Income $11,362 $ 11,117 $10,930 $10,866
Interest Expense 1,602 1,620 1,683 1,664
Net Interest Income 9,760 9,497 9,247 9,202
Provision for Loan Losses 125 250 129 362
Securities Gains (23 ) 9 - 3
Noninterest Income 2,265 2,224 2,358 2,209
Noninterest Expense 8,783 8,335 8,320 8,286
Income Before Income Taxes 3,094 3,145 3,156 2,766
Provision for Income Taxes 989 945 971 883
Net Income 2,105 2,200 2,185 1,883
Preferred Stock Dividends 521 594 630 630
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Net Income Available to Common Stockholders $1,584 $ 1,606 $1,555 $1,253

Net Income Per Common Share
Basic $0.19 $ 0.19 $0.18 $0.15
Diluted $0.19 $ 0.19 $0.18 $0.15
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Part II (Continued)

Item 9

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

The Company did not change auditors in 2016. In addition, there was no accounting or disclosure disagreement or
reportable event with the current auditors that would have required the filing of a report on Form 8-K.

Item 9A

Controls and Procedures

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have evaluated the Company’s disclosure controls
and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)), as of the end of the period covered by this report, as required by
paragraph (b) of Rules 13a-15 or 15d-15 of the Exchange Act. Based on such evaluation, such officers have concluded
that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, there was not any change in the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting identified in connection with the evaluation required by paragraph (d) of Rules 13a-15 or 15d-15 of the
Exchange Act that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Colony’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. Colony’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of Colony’s financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to
financial statement preparation and presentation.

Colony’s management assessed the effectiveness of Colony’s internal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2016 based on the criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting established in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
Based on the assessment, management determined that Colony maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2016.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s independent registered public accounting
firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. The Company’s registered public accounting firm was not
required to issue an attestation on its internal controls over financial reporting pursuant to the rules of the SEC that
permit the Company to provide only management’s report in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Colony Bankcorp, Inc.

March 10, 2017
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Part II (Continued)

Item 9A (Continued)

Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes made in our internal controls during the period covered by this report or, to our knowledge, in
other factors that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect these controls.

See the Certifications pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Item 9B

Other Information

None.

Part III

Item 10

Directors and Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Code of Ethics

Colony Bankcorp, Inc. has adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to the Company’s principal executive officer and
principal accounting and financial officer. A copy of the Code of Ethics will be provided to any person without
charge, upon written request mailed to Terry Hester, Colony Bankcorp, Inc., 115 S. Grant Street, Fitzgerald, Georgia
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31750.

The remaining information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the Directors and Nominees section of
the Company’s definitive Proxy Statements to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to
Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report.

Item 11

Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the Executive Compensation section of the
Company’s definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to
Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report.
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Part III (Continued)

Item 12

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The Company does not currently have any securities authorized for issuance pursuant to the grant or exercise of
awards under an equity compensation plan.

The remaining information required by this item is incorporated by reference to Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners section of the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual
Report.

Item 13

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the Governance of the Company and Related
Party Transactions with the Company sections of the Company’s definitive Proxy Statements to be filed with
Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the fiscal year covered by this
Annual Report.

Item 14

Principal Accounting Fees and Services
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The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the Independent Public Accountants section of
the Company’s definitive Proxy Statements to be filed with Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to
Regulation 14A within 120 days after the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report.
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Part IV

Item 15

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a)The following documents are filed as part of this report:

(1)Financial Statements

(2)Financial Statements Schedules:

All schedules are omitted as the required information is inapplicable or the information is presented in the financial
statements or the related notes.

(3)A list of the exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K to be filed as a part of this report is shown on the“Exhibit Index” filed herewith.

Exhibit Index

3.1Articles of Incorporation, As Amended

-filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant’s 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2014
(File No. 0-12436), filed with the Commission on August 4, 2014 and incorporated herein by reference.

3.2Bylaws, as Amended

-filed as Exhibit 3(b) to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 10 (File No. 0-18486), filed with the
Commission on April 25, 1990 and incorporated herein by reference.

3.3Articles of Amendment to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation Authorizing Additional Capital Stock inthe Form of Ten Million Shares of Preferred Stock
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-filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-12436) filed with the Commission
on January 13, 2009 and incorporated herein by reference.

3.4Articles of Amendment to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation Establishing the Terms of the Series APreferred Stock

-filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-12436) filed with the Commission
on January 13, 2009 and incorporated herein by reference.

3.5Amendment to the Company’s Bylaws

-filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant’s 8-K (File No.000-12436), filed with the Commission on May 29, 2015 and
incorporated herein by reference.

4.1Instruments Defining the Rights of Security Holders

-incorporated herein by reference to page 1 of the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement for Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held on April 26, 2005, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 2, 2005
(File No. 000-12436).
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Part IV (Continued)

Item 15 (Continued)

4.2Warrant to Purchase up to 500,000 shares of Common Stock

-filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-12436), filed with the Commission
on January 13, 2009 and incorporated herein by reference.

4.3Form of Series A Preferred Stock Certificate

-filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-12436), filed with the Commission
on January 13, 2009 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.1Deferred Compensation Plan and Sample Director Agreement

-filed as Exhibit 10(a) to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 10 (File No. 0-18486), filed with the
Commission on Apri l25, 1990 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.2Profit-Sharing Plan Dated January 1, 1979

-filed as Exhibit 10(b) to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 10 (File No. 0-18486), filed with the
Commission on April 25, 1990 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.31999 Restricted Stock Grant Plan and Restricted Stock Grant Agreement

-filed as Exhibit 10© the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File 000-12436), filed with the Commission on
March 30, 2001 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.42004 Restricted Stock Grant Plan and Restricted Stock Grant Agreement

-filed as Exhibit C to the Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement for Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on April
27, 2004, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 3, 2004 (File No. 000-12436) and
incorporated herein by reference.
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10.5Lease Agreement - Mobile Home Tracks, LLC c/o Stafford Properties, Inc. and Colony Bank Worth

-filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10Q (File No. 000-12436), filed with Securities
and Exchange Commission on November 5, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.6
Letter Agreement, Dated January 9, 2009, Including Securities Purchase Agreement – Standard Terms
Incorporated by Reference Therein, Between the Company and the United States Department of the
Treasury

-filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-12436), filed with the
Commission on January 13, 2009 and incorporated herein by reference.
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Part IV (Continued)

Item 15 (Continued)

10.7Form of Waiver, Executed by Each of Messrs Al
D. Ross, Terry L. Hester, Henry F. Brown, Jr., Walter P. Patten and Larry E. Stevenson

-filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-12436), filed with the
Commission on January 13, 2009 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.8Employment Agreement, Dated April 27, 2012 Between Edward P. Loomis, Jr. and Colony Bankcorp, Inc.

-filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-12436), filed with the
Commission on May 2, 2012 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.9Retention Agreements

-filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant’s 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2015 (File No. 000-12436), filed with
the Commission on May 4, 2015 and incorporated herein by reference.

13Consolidated Financial Statements of Colony Bankcorp, Inc. as of December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014

21Subsidiaries of the Company

31.1Certificate of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2Certificate of Chief Financial and Accounting Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32Certificate of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of theSarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

99.2Retention Agreement

Edgar Filing: COLONY BANKCORP INC - Form 10-K

155



-filed as Exhibit 99.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-12436), filed with the
Commission on October 18, 2016 and incorporated herein.

101.INSXBRL Instance Document

101.SCHXBRL Schema Document

101.CALXBRL Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEFXBRL Definition Linkbase Document

101.LABXBRL Label Linkbase Document

101.PREXBRL Presentation Linkbase Document
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Colony Bankcorp, Inc.
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized:

COLONY BANKCORP, INC.

/s/ Edward P. Loomis, Jr.
Edward P. Loomis, Jr.

President/Director/Chief Executive Officer

March 10, 2017
Date

/s/ Terry L. Hester
Terry L. Hester

Executive Vice-President/Chief Financial Officer/Director

March 10, 2017
Date

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

/s/ B. Gene Waldron March 10, 2017
B. Gene Waldron, Director Date

/s/ Mark H. Massee March 10, 2017
Mark H. Massee, Director Date
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/s/ Jonathan W. R. Ross March 10, 2017
Jonathan W. R. Ross, Director Date

/s/ Frederick Dwozan March 10, 2017
M. Frederick Dwozan, Director Date

/s/ Scott Lowell Downing March 10, 2017
Scott Lowell Downing, Director Date

- 82 -

Edgar Filing: COLONY BANKCORP INC - Form 10-K

158


